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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it
is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Merdeka Mobile Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Merdeka Mobile Group Limited, | am pleased to present the
2014 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2014. During the year, the Group is principally engaged in forestry
business, plantation business, trading business including the trading of various
brands of milk powder products to customers based in Hong Kong, information
technology business and it has also diverged into the money lending business.

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW

Regarding the forestry project of the Group, in view of the news and travel
alerts appearing in recent months related to the continuing threat of terrorist
attacks and communal clash occurred in Timika, the Board considers that the
resumption of operation will remain suspended due to the continuing escalation
of violence during the year at where the Group’s office is located. Therefore
the staff members in Timika have to evacuate and the process of obtaining
the land use permit is still hindered, though, according to the updated legal
opinion and legal confirmation letter from Indonesian lawyers, the Company
is legally permitted to carry out land clearing activities and to develop oil palm
plantation business within the Mimika Concessions Areas. The Group had
kept its operation scale to preserve its financial resources and engaged a local
resident to help overseeing the development of the political unrest in Timika. As
the forestry and plantation businesses did not progress as scheduled due to the
uncertain prospects and political environment in Timika, the Group strived to
grow the trading business which could provide a stable source of revenue. The
Group sources the milk powder products directly from the milk powder product
importers in Hong Kong and sells to (i) the bulk purchasers in Hong Kong;
(i) the pharmacies in Hong Kong; and (iii) the individual customers through
e-commerce platform. On the other hand, the Group has actively pursued
suitable business opportunities to further broaden the sources of revenue and
cash inflows of the Group, taking into account the funding requirement and
associated business risk. During the year, the Group suffered loss from its
existing business for an extended period of time mainly due to the suspension
of its forestry project in Timika. However, the gross profit margin was improving
as a result of the revenue growth in the trading and information technology
business of the Group.

Regarding the trading project of tailings in the Papua Province of Indonesia, the
management has been working with the supplier for a settlement of the contract
that stipulated all deliveries be taken by August 2014.

The Group is looking forward to the exploding mobile game market, value of
which is growing tremendously with relatively low barriers to entry. As a result,
on 1 April 2014, the Company through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary
entered into a shareholders agreement, pursuant to which Mian Yang Heng
Da Information Technology Limited (k% 1H &5 S RHEA RAF]) (“Mian
Yang Heng Da”), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China,
would increase its registered capital to RMB5,000,000 from RMB500,000 by
increasing RMB4,500,000, in which the Company agreed to subscribe for
registered capital of Mian Yang Heng Da in the amount of RMB3,000,000
and agreed to pay RMB1,000,000 to Mian Yang Heng Da credited as the
subscription by its existing shareholder. As Mian Yang Heng Da is developing
its mobile games and the cloud-based city Wi-Fi application software, such
possible investment in it is in line with the Group’s business development plans.
All the necessary procedures and registration in relation to this acquisition
of the 60% of the enlarged share capital of Mian Yang Heng Da have been
completed on 22 July 2014. In order to enjoy complimentary benefits, the
Group had also on 4 April 2014 completed the acquisition of Ever Hero group
and leveraging on its reputation and experiences in online games as a new
business opportunity.

BRIR -

R A FRZA A 52 Merdeka Mobile Group Limited (£ 127
HEBEBRAFIREAATRANBATNEEZE S
—EF+ A=+ —RLEFEZ - —NEFER
o FN - REBFEREMRER  BEER
Eo¥B(RIEHEEEREPETTIRMEINERE
5) - BB - AMBERREE

EXRREEDRE
SRANSE B2 AR A S - A A S R B R

LRIETimkaiB EX B RMER L ICEFEREE - &
ZeRAERRTOAREBREEAEHIIR HEE
FH » BHEBSEEE L - R - ETimikaZ BT
BRI - M ARIEEERMEEZ BFAEER
MARHRE - AR BIEA A FFEMImikafi
R ANETEIEERE AR ER RIS
T FERRFAIE 2 DR ER - ANEE /R HlEE
RERBHBER  WER—REERAREER
E=TimikaZ) 2 BRI EE - Timkasi = A8 - BEE
& BEMORMEEEREE R NIEE - Al - A%
ERENEREHE  HiemiRERETREERIR - &
EEREENNERE O BEERBIMER  WE
EF  (\BEMERER (B8R  Ki)E68E
THEFEETREARE - 3—HHE  ~5EEGS
kA BERKSE - LUEIINABEEA AT 2 kS MRS
RAKR - Bt RES B K MABRMERRR - RF
W NEEIRA EBRIPGEE - E2HMTimka
MARBERIE - A1 - AEBEZE S NEMBERES
WS ER - SEFIREGANRE -

HMENEEMGANERESEAMS - NEEHA -
EIREC RAEREER - BRBIIAR T —IOFEN
ARIZNS 2 B HPERAIRR

NEFBMB B S SNRRER  MEABELR
BT - ATTPIEAFEYEIR - ALt - R —I04F
WA—H @ ARREBEEZE2EMBE R AR IR
Wz - R AR E AR MBI MRS R R4S
BEEEREAERAR([HREEE el ELRRA
AR#500,0007T © #40A R#4,500,0007T © EAR
#5,000,0007T © HAARFEEREASEENER
B 25845 ARE3000,0007T 0 WREZMAR
1,000,000 F42f51EE - tEAEIRBRRRAE 2
I - HARISIEE I REB B NMA TR AE
FISRTIWI-FIfE B ENE - AT REIR E A R EE XS
BREE - LB RIS IEEIRE EM60% A 2 FiE
WERFRERERZE—NFEF+A-T-AZEK -
AZELHEANE  AEER - —UENAMNAE K
Ever Hero= BURRE ST - WIEBHE AR HisEiR) B2
Nisss - BRI ESIS -



LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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While focusing on its existing business, it is part of the business strategy of the
Group to seek for new investments when opportunities arise. During the year,
the Company commenced its money lending activities apart from its principal
business in the second quarter of 2014. To accommodate and to facilitate this
business development, the Group had applied for, and was granted, a money
lenders licence in Hong Kong to carry on business as a money lender for a
period of twelve (12) months from 2 December 2014. The Group is able to
develop the money lending business as one of its principal lines of business by
providing loans in a systematic and repetitive nature in its ordinary course of
business, subject to compliance with the requirements in the Money Lenders
Ordinance.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to the announcement dated 10 February 2014, the Company agreed
with the bondholders to exercise its redemption right to early redeem partially
the existing outstanding convertible bonds and served a redemption notice
pursuant to the supplemental deed for redeeming an outstanding principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 of the convertible bonds, which was settled in cash
of HK$19,000,000, representing a discount of approximately 5% of the principal
sum of the early redeemed convertible bonds. Pursuant to the announcement
dated 30 July 2014, the Company agreed with the bondholders to exercise its
redemption right to early redeem partially the existing outstanding convertible
bonds and served a redemption notice pursuant to the supplemental deed
for redeeming an outstanding principal amount of HK$13,812,000 of the
convertible bonds.

Pursuant to the announcement dated 15 August 2014, the Company agreed
with a bondholder to exercise its redemption right to early redeem partially
the outstanding convertible bonds and served a redemption notice pursuant
to the supplemental deed for redeeming an outstanding principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 of the convertible bonds. Following and as a result of the
aforesaid redemptions of convertible bonds, the outstanding principal amount
due by the Company to the convertible bondholders under the convertible
bonds is HK$124,068,000.

The Second Supplemental Deed dated 9 July 2014 and the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the grant of a specific mandate to the directors
of the Company to allot and issue new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company upon exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the Convertible Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.0462 per
share (subject to adjustment) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of
the Convertible Bonds as amended by the Second Supplemental Deed were
approved, confirmed and ratified by the shareholders of the Company during an
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 September 2014.

As a result of the share consolidation, pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the instrument of the convertible bonds, with effect from the close of business
in Hong Kong on the day immediately preceding the date on which the
consolidation become effective, 29 September 2014, the conversion price of
the convertible bonds has been adjusted to HK$0.3696 per consolidated share.
Therefore, 335,681,818 conversion shares will be allotted and issued pursuant
to the Second Supplemental Deed with HK$124,068,000 being the outstanding
principal amount due by the Company to the convertible bondholders under the
convertible bonds as at the date of this report. The said adjusted conversion
price has been reviewed by the Company’s auditors, Elite Partners CPA
Limited.
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RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company on 11 April 2014 (after trading hours), entered into an
underwriting agreement with CNI Securities Group Limited in relation to
the underwriting and certain other arrangements in respect of the rights
issue on the basis of 4 rights shares for every 1 share in issue and held
on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.040 each. On 23 July
2014, 2,451,400,860 rights shares were issued, raising net proceeds of
approximately HK$93.56 million.

SHARE CONSOLIDATION, CHANGE IN BOARD LOT SIZE,
THE CAPITAL REDUCTION AND SUB-DIVISION

Pursuant to the announcement dated 26 September 2014, the share
consolidation, the capital reduction and sub-division as detailed in the
circular dated 3 September 2014 were approved by the shareholders of the
Company during an extraordinary general meeting held on 26 September
2014. As a result, the events set forth in the timetable in respect of the Share
Consolidation, change in board lot size, the Capital Reduction and Sub-division
on pages iii and iv of the circular dated 3 September 2014 were carried out
accordingly.

The share consolidation was effective on 29 September 2014, and accordingly,
the change of board lot size of the consolidated shares from 40,000 to 20,000
each became upon the share consolidation becoming effective.

As a result of the share consolidation, the number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of this report is 383,031,384 shares.

As a result of the share consolidation, pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the instrument of the convertible bonds, with effect from the close of business
in Hong Kong on the day immediately preceding the date on which the
consolidation become effective, 29 September 2014, the conversion price of
the convertible bonds has been adjusted to HK$0.3696 per consolidated share,
and pursuant to the terms and conditions of the existing share options scheme
of the Company, the subscription price of the outstanding options has been
adjusted to HK$5.68 and HK$3.36 per consolidated share respectively, based
on which a total of 237,101 Shares (each at HK$5.68) and 19,387 Shares
(each at HK$3.36) will be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options
in full. The said adjusted conversion price and subscription price have been
reviewed by the Company’s auditors, Elite Partners CPA Limited.

The order confirming the Capital Reduction and the Sub-division was granted
by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (the “Court”) on 19 December 2014
(Cayman Islands time), and copies of order of the Court and other relevant
documents was filed and duly registered with the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 5 January 2015 (Cayman Islands time). Accordingly, all the
conditions precedent for the implementation of the Capital Reduction and Sub-
division was fulfilled and the Capital Reduction became effective on 6 January
2015 (Hong Kong time).
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As the Group’s activities now include information technology business and
in order to better reflect the future expansion and diversifications of the
Company’s business into the information technology based mobile games and
application software business and provide the Company with a fresh corporate
identity and image, the Company changed the English name of the Company
from “Merdeka Resources Holdings Limited” to “Merdeka Mobile Group
Limited” and upon the English name change becoming effective, to adopt the
Chinese name “# #5558 S B A BR /A F]” to replace B fl & YR 4L B A7 PR A 7]
for identification purposes only with effect from 8 May 2014. The English and
Chinese stock short names for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange
was changed from “MERDEKA RES” to “MERDEKAMOBILE” and from “#&7&
EIR” to “HE B respectively with effect from 8 May 2014. The logo of the
Company has also been changed from MERDEKA to EA with effect from 8
May 2014.

PROMISSORY NOTE

Following the completion of the acquisition of the Ever Hero group on 4 April
2014, and in accordance with the terms of the relevant acquisition agreement,
the Company has issued the promissory note to the vendor pursuant to
the terms of the promissory note instrument. On 1 September 2014, the
Company has redeemed HK$2,400,000 out of the total outstanding amount of
HK$51,000,000 of the promissory note. Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the Company has on 19 March 2015, partially redeemed HK$10 million of the
promissory note at a cash consideration of HK$10 million paid to Hero Win
Development Limited, the holder of the promissory note. As a results, the total
amount of outstanding promissory note is HK$38,600,000 as at the date of this
report.

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION

On 31 October 2014, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary
End User Investments Limited, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Yihua Enterprises Limited as vendor (the “Vendor”) and Mr. Cheng Jun
and Mr. Gao Yun Feng, being the guarantors, pursuant to which End User
Investments Limited has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital of Blossom
Height Ventures Limited and the amounts due by Blossom Height Ventures
Limited to the Vendor at a total consideration of HK$72 million. Blossom Height
Ventures Limited, through its wholly owned Hong Kong subsidiary, Ideal Magic
International Limited (¥35# /547 FR/A 1), holds 64.71% of the enlarged (but
not fully paid up) registered capital of f&{i @l &L (i) HR/AF (Heng He
Financial Lease (Shanghai) Company Limited*)(the “PRC Company”).

The PRC Company is principally engaged in the financial leasing business,
which specialises in organising and providing direct financial leasing services
and sale-and-leaseback services to customers in the PRC. The customers
of the PRC Company (also known as the lessees) are mainly manufacturing
companies and governmental authorities.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Consideration of HK$72 million
shall be settled in the following manner: (i) HK$32 million shall be settled
by way of promissory note to be issued by the Company to the Vendor on
completion; and (ii) HK$40 million shall be settled by way of convertible bonds
to be issued by the Company to the Vendor on completion.

*  For identification purpose only £z /|
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B R R ER

REEARFEBHR+ @A - ARRSHET I

Actual use of proceeds
FrEEER AR

Approximately HK$53.81 million has
been used for the partial redemption of
the convertible bonds; approximately
HK$6.75 million has been used for the
expansion of money lending business;
and the remaining is eposited in bank

#753,810,00078 7 2 F1ERE R 25 ) R A%
&% : 496,750 000 T N ERINEE
B REpBRITE AT

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY RATZEETE
In the past 12 months immediately prior to the date of this report, the Company
has carried out the following fund raising activities: BEE -
Date of announcement Fund raising activity Net proceeds Intended use of proceeds
(approximately)
IR £EEE P8R (B4) FENERERR
11 April 2014 Rights issue on the basis of HK$93.56 million (i) at least half of the net proceeds
four rights shares for every from the rights issue will be
one share held on the record applied for the partial redemption
date of the convertible bonds; (ii) the
remaining net proceeds from the
rights issue will be applied for
strengthening the general working
capital base of the Company to
finance its business development
and/or to finance any future
investment opportunities
—TmF HERINISEEEHE— 9356000057 (VR EEFEE D — KA
mA+—8 PR TR TR A AR AR {ERBEID AR ES © (i)eh Mt
iR AR R A AR A AR
—REEESEMN  URHERE
BR/ SRR AR EIREE
&
OUTLOOK BE

The Board expects that the year of 2015, due to the suspension of forestry
projects in Indonesia, there was no revenue generated from the Group’s
forestry and plantation business. However, the trading of milk powder products
continues to provide a stable source of revenue to the Group and as the
business is growing healthily, the Group is expanding its trading business into
other consumer products. For the information technology business, revenue
would be mainly driven by the additional contribution from the consolidation of
different acquired entitles into a single stream of income. Moreover, as a result
of the Group commenced its money lending activities in the second quarter of
2014, there would be an overall increase in revenue as well as the operating
profit of the Group as compared to year of 2014.

Following the completion of the acquisition of Blossom Height Ventures
Limited, as the PRC Company has been generating profits in the year of
2014, it is expected that this acquisition will contribute profit to the Group after
completion. The Directors believe that this acquisition will allow the Group,
without setting up a new financing company, to further develop its financing
related business in the PRC through a direct working capital injection, and
subsequently to enjoy the benefits of the capital leverage in the PRC Company.
Looking forward, in view of the growth potential of the financial leasing industry
in the PRC, the Directors consider that this acquisition will enhance the
performance of the Group and the return to the Shareholders as a whole.

EEgHER T 1% hRHEMRERRL
BAREBEMA R BIE R ARESE W o A 8
MEME HEE RN EBEREREBAIR - BBiRZ
EBRERE  AEECHREBSEBEEME
BEm - REABEEBME - WARETERRE
BIUB T RERSE - WATRELEINER -
IS - HRAEER T —NFE _FERRMESE
% AEEZ WS LG EBNER T NFH 528
BFED -

K& 2 I Blossom Height Ventures LimitedZefX »
PREARRZT—NFE—ERIEH - FBAETEUEE
RN E A ERGEFEL R - EEFHEENE
FIEGFEAEEEBAER T REARNER TER
EREEESTE B —PREENPBIRE MR
7% BB ZBPEARIZES R - BERR - &
RAREREAETEMLREN - EERAKESE
MR FHE IR AR SR ER IR I NNARER 2 RS EIFR
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APPRECIATION 26

| would like to express my gratitude to our management team and all staff ~ARAAEIREAERZEE THBEFRHRITAEER
for their hard work in the execution of the Group’s strategies and operations  8R& & 3764848 A 2) TIEBUAS S o SRR
during the past year. As approved by the shareholders in the annual —Z——FHA=HETHRIEAFEAS FHbER -
general meeting held on 3 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option A GHIRANELIEAETE - FE A AERE =5
scheme, which could provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants V& B8R A EIZEEBNGETF - &4 - ANATREL
for their contribution to the Group. Last but not the least, | wish to thank all ~ FZEEE - BF - (LFER - 2L - SRITREUT
shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners, bankers, government  #728— & AR AR E B STH= RE DR TS o
authorities for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson FEFRTIAEE,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer REE
Hong Kong BB

31 March 2015 —ET-RF=ZA=1+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TEERWRE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW oS

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t—HLEE

(HK$’000, except percentage figures) 2014 2013
(AT - lRBESETIN) —E—MFE —T—=F
Revenue WA 69,877 40,762
Gross profit EF 8,296 2,085
Gross profit margin FEH= 11.9% 5.1%
Operating expenses R (4,570) (5,923)
Administrative expenses 1THRER (13,555) (10,730)
Non-cash items: HIREIBR
Depreciation* e (1,241) (5,098)
Written off of inventories FEMER (390) -
Written off of property, plant and equipment YIZE - S IR AR — (2,347)
Written off of construction in progress R TIEMER - (5,000)
Written off other financial asset Hitb S ph & E MR (1,748) -
Impairment of prepayments, deposits TERNFRIE « #2e FHA

and other receivables FEMGRIRRE (6,004) -
Impairment of forest concessions PMERTERIE (170,811) (70,000)
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE S IERIE (2,130) -
Impairment of goodwill PTERE (16,519) -
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR 45 B A B ST BEARRE A SE = (3,275)
Gain on fair value upon extension of AR ES IR 2 A BB

convertible bonds 39,480 -
Gain on convertible bonds repayment B AR &S 2 W 2,752 -
Loss on promissory note repayment EiEFE G EE 7 EE (388) -
Finance costs of convertible bonds AR ES AN B 2 s AR

and promissory note (15,047) (22,279)
Loss for the year REFEE (180,739) (115,153)
Profit/(Loss) excluding non-cash items** WERIERSIER 2 FI8(EHE) (8,693) (7,154)

* In 2014 and 2013, all of the depreciation were included in the operating and ~ * RIT—NERZT—=F  IENEFTALLER

*k

administrative expenses.

Loss for the year less non-cash items stated

S BITRER -

REEEERAMTIIERSITAR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWRE 7 Hh

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was generated
from the trading of dairy products and beauty products, information
technology business and money lending business which was introduced in
the second quarter whereas for Year 2013 was generated from trading of
agricultural-related products and dairy products, and the new IT business
which was acquired in the second half of Year 2013. The revenue increased
by approximately HK$29,115,000 to approximately HK$69,877,000 on a
year-on-year basis. Revenue of trading business amounted approximately
to HK$53,200,000 which represented surge of revenue approximately
HK$15,162,000 on a year-on-year basis. The surge of revenue was driven by
a good shift of sources of revenue from a comparably low volume of turnover’s
agricultural-related products to a comparably higher volume of turnover’s
beauty products which turnover grew stronger in the second half of the year,
and diary products which was introduced since the second quarter of last year.
Revenue from IT business increased by approximately HK$13,557,000 to
approximately HK$16,281,000 on a year-on-year basis. The surge of revenue
mainly was driven by additional contribution from the newly acquired business
of Ever Hero group, and the contribution of revenue in the first half of this year
by Quasicom Systems Limited since acquisition in the second half of Year
2013. The newly introduced money lending business also contributed revenue
approximately HK$396,000. Since the commencement of business in the
second quarter of the year.

Gross profit for the year increased to approximately HK$8,296,000 from a year
ago of approximately HK$2,085,000. The increase was mainly contributed by
relatively higher volume of turnover and gross profit margin derived from the
trading business and information technology business.

The operating expenses for the year was approximately HK$4,570,000 which
was decreased from a year ago of approximately HK$5,923,000. The decrease
was the net result of the decrease in expenditure in Indonesia since downsizing
in operation in 2013 and the increase of expenditure resulted from increased
business activities in Hong Kong.

Administrative expenses for the year 2014 increased by approximately
HK$2,825,000 to approximately HK$13,555,000 from year 2013 represented
more resources utilized along with increased business activities.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, depreciation decreased to
approximately HK$1,241,000 from approximately HK$5,098,000 for the year
2013 represented the result benefited from some high cost property, plant and
equipment written off in 2013.

During the year 2014, the Group impaired inventories of beauty products
of approximately HK$390,000 representing stock loss. Impairment of other
financial asset approximately HK$1,748,000 represented the difference of the
fair value of the profit guarantee component of the consideration for the very
substantial acquisition of the Ever Hero Group and the shortfall of profit before
tax for the year 2014 of Ever Hero Group’s subsidiary, Netgenii Technology
Limited.

During the year impairment of prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$6,004,000 mainly of the prepayments in relation to tailing
projects of tailings in the Papua Province of Indonesia.

NEFHE-ZT—NF+-A=+t—BItFEZHA
REBEFRREERER B EBERE=
TERBROREES M =—FEHFREE
BERBEMNMAZERUNR S —ZF T FFHE
AZ BB ER o IAFZFIEN14729,115,00078 70
Z#969,877,000/8 7T - B B EBHUAL)A53,200,000
BIT 0 IRFE AN EFH#915,162,00078 7T © WA KNE
FH TP R INERIR AR - iSRS EREN 2R
HEMERARSEEBNERER  HEEHRN
AEETHFARAYEE  URAHEFE-_FELD
ARFLELG o kB BB EB AR AIZF L INL
13,557,000/ 7T & 4716,281,00078 7T WA AIE T+
T ERMNEIE AEver Herof BI85 2 385N EBE
A RERZF—=%F £ 2 Quasicom Systems
Limited AN F & _EEFEEIRA - FTHRHMEE
BNHZEERAFEE —_FERRBERKAL
396,000 7T ©

N EE R B EF 492,0850008 TIZFIR R E L
8,296,000/ 7T ° EIEF BHNE FEE R EMNEHLEE
EEAREE S S %N TEFRE

NEFE RS XA 45700008 7T« MEFZH
5,923,000/ LB FTRY » BREIRA TSARNB —F—=
FHRENEEREE %E*EPE@(F%?E@EX RRTEE
TR BI YRR PTG SO IIRAR A AR

TBUE FItl — T — = 142,825,008 T E —F
— U4 41135550007 + 5B E % E R b R
ES VTR

BE_TNF+_A=+—HItFE  HTEH_
_¢Z’]5,098,000/%75M’J >ZE#91,241,0007% 7T lH:Tb
HRNE-Z—=FHERE TR - BFE &R

MZZE—UF - REBBEEDEMTE%I390,000
BT TIEfFEK o Hfh @@ & ERIEA)1,748,0007%
TTHEUREEEVer Hero GroupZé‘F%ijiLlﬁlﬁﬁﬁ’JﬁﬁZ/ﬁ
FIRZFEED D A FE(EEREver Hero Group— BB A
Netgenii Technology Limited — & — PO BB BTG F 'JFTT
PReREMMERE

FEARTEAMHE RGBS RBEERER
WIENZOBELTENRUE - e REMEKRZIEY
6,004,000/ 7T 2 A °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMWE S Hh

The postponement of the Group’s forestry project to further later years and
lower market prices for timber products led to the impairment of approximately
HK$170,811,000 to the forest concessions for the year which was much
higher than last year 2013 by approximately HK$100,811,000. Impairment
of trade receivables was made of approximately HK$2,130,000 in relation to
agricultural-related debtors of approximately HK$1,732,000 and information
technology debtors of approximately HK$398,000. Impairment of goodwill of
approximately HK$16,519,000 related to goodwill of subsidiaries of information
technology business.

Finance costs represented the non-cash imputed interest charged in the liability
component of the Group’s zero coupon convertible bonds and the 2% coupon
promissory note. The cost decreased by approximately HK$7,232,000 in 2014
from approximately HK$22,279,000 in 2013, which was mainly contributed
by the decrease in average balance of the liability component when certain
convertible bonds were redeemed during the year.

During this year, the Group did not grant and forfeit any share options therefore
not recognised and wrote back any share option expense whereas in last year
2013 approximately HK$3,275,000 share option expenses were recorded
represented the grant of 595,000,000 share options under the share option
scheme of the Company of approximately HK$3,322,000 and 4,000,000 share
options were lapsed of approximately HK$47,000.

During the year, the Group recognised a one-off gain in fair value on
extinguishment of convertible bonds liability component of approximately
HK$39,480,000 derived from revaluation upon extension of convertible
bonds for 3 years, and gain of approximately HK$2,752,000 on early partial
redemption of convertible bonds, and loss on early repayment of promissory
note of approximately HK$388,000.

AREERIMAIE B 718 — B AV E ST ERE
KB BN [ FRM 57 13 (E 49170,811,00078 7T
R - — = F K81 H147100,811,0005 7T - €5
JEUN IR (B #)2,130,000/8 7T © BREEREERE
AL E1,732,000/8 T M E A RHEEREALN A
398,000/87T ° B RI{E4716,519,000/8 7T Ty A A
U BB AR 2 HE -

BMEXNABAEETES M HRESFBEISS ZIER
SHER SRS FE R ERERHNBE2% - R=F—N
F 0 AR — T — = 4 4922,279,00078 JTE A 49
7,232,000787C © EEMAE T AIRRESFNFNER
O - FEERD LMD -

AREEFRE N R ST RSB E -t
EEARAAELERERY  MRZZE—=F&55
{E S IR IR 7 493,275,000/8 7T+ JHRIEAA T 2 &
SR ATRERTEIHR 493,322,000 7T, 595,000,000/ 12
Jo BB NAE & 4947,0007% 7T, 4,000,00015 8 ST EE A 2k
e

AEERFARRAELR AT RRESRIFRHE
(HFTEGE S AR AR (&5 B (E 369 739,480,000/ 7T —
KA FEERS  REBERABREES ZRED
2,752,00078 7T M 1R FE 4 H 515 7 E51849388,000
BT °

Revenue Profit/(loss) before tax
WA BRBLATRIE,(E518)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLFE

(HK$°000) 2014 2013 2014 2013
(T#7T) —B-—QNE T -F ZT-mFE —T =F
Trading business B 53,200 38,038 797 982
Information technology business BRI SRS 16,281 2,724 (20,084) (925)
Forestry business MRZERS - - (141,399) (100,967)
Money lending business WEHER 396 - 396 -
Total fst 69,877 40,762 (160,290)  (100,910)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMWE S Hh

Revenue from our trading business increased by 39.86% from approximately
HK$38,038,000 in 2013 to approximately HK$53,200,000 in 2014, as the
Group strived to grow the trading business which provided a stable source of
revenue.

After the successful acquisition of Ever Hero Group in the second quarter of this
year, revenue relating to information technology business grew much stronger
by an increase of approximately HK$13,557,000 since a year ago.

Since 2012, no revenue was recorded from the Group’s forestry business.

Compared to 2013, loss before tax for the forestry business in 2014 increased
which was mainly due to the impairments related to the forest concessions.

KEEE 5 EBHIRA R ZF—=F4938,038,000/5
TTE039.86% 2= — T — P04 £753,200,0005 7T © [RA
BAEEENBERAREBTWARIRAE S

AANFFE = FERIIEEver Hero2 Bi% - EallE
AR A E e PIE K - 5 A FHEHENN14913,557,000
BT

B=F——Fi  NEBRMAREB L BEISERUK
A °

BT -=FAE - D UEMAREBORTATE
BRI - EEANARBRMSIHE 2R(E

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—BHLFE

2014 2013
=F-mF —T-=F
(HK$’000, except percentage figures) Revenue Proportion Revenue Proportion
(T BRLEFHRIN) [LON Eefi [N Ll
Hong Kong B 69,877 100% 40,762 100%

All the Group’s revenue was derived from Hong Kong in 2014 and 2013.

AEERZE—NFER T =FHRAZIREE

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—8
(HK$’000, except percentage figures) 2014 2013
(FAT © BRLLEFRRIN) —E—[F —E—=%
Property, plant and equipment Y - B R 4,764 1,245
Forest concessions TRERETHE 29,000 199,811
Other Financing asset HEthomEE 5,025 -
Trade receivables B 5 REIERTR 7,132 2,300
Loan receivables B EUGRIAR 3,220 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIBeEEEHR 32,207 7,895
Convertible bonds — liability component AR ES — B EHS (87,803) (187,471)
Non-controlling interests PR (9,472) (1,650)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RIRAEGES AL I S A 12,934 58,363
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMWE S Hh

Property, plant and equipment increased to approximately HK$4,764,000
as at 31 December 2014 from a year ago of approximately HK$1,245,000.
The increase was mainly due to additional acquisition during the year with
cost of approximately HK$4,775,000 net off depreciation of approximately
HK$1,241,000.

Forest concessions decreased to approximately HK$29,000,000 as at 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$199,811,000 as at 31 December
2013. The decrease was due to impairment loss made to reflect the worsening
environment in Timika where the forest concessions situate that required more
provision for loss on its value to the Group.

Other financial asset of approximately HK$5,025,000 being the fair value of the
profit guarantee component of the total consideration for the very substantial
acquisition of the Ever Hero Group during the year.

Trade receivables increased by approximately HK$4,832,000 during the year
which was mainly attributable to information technology business.

Cash and cash equivalents increased significantly by 407.94% to
approximately HK$32,207,000 as at 31 December 2014 from approximately
HK$7,895,000 of a year ago. The increase was partly caused by the fund
raising activities of the Group and partly caused by the net cash inflow from
operation.

The liability component of the convertible bonds significantly decreased by
53.16% to approximately HK$87,803,000 as at 31 December 2014 from
approximately HK$187,471,000 as at 31 December 2013 which was mainly
contributed by partial redemption and fair value change upon extension during
the year.

Non-controlling interests decreased to approximately HK$(9,472,000) as at 31
December 2014 from approximately HK$(1,650,000) as at 31 December 2013.
The decrease was mainly due to the sharing of loss on impairment related to
the forest concessions in our non-wholly owned Indonesian subsidiaries by
their non-controlling shareholders for 2014.

The Group’s equity attributable to owners decreased significantly of
approximately HK$45,429,000 during the year which was mainly due to higher
loss for the year caused by extraordinary non-cash expenditure on impairment
loss.

YIE - R MR SR EE491,245,0008 TTIENE =
—PUE+— A =1+—H%94,764,000/8 7T - A/EEIETS
FERRERRE KA 44,775,000/8 TTIESEITE L
1,241,000/87C °

AMEHFER _E-—=FE+_A=+—80%
199,811,000/ TR V2 —FT—NF+—A=+—H%)
29,000,000/ 7T © JF A Ty ME BB BB A R BRFR
W EATENTimkalR ER L ME ZREUAEE
ZBEENEZRERE -

E b gl & E 495,025,000/ 75 F N Ever Hero5
ZIEREARUEE 2 AR EFBRESSNAFE -

FNE HIEKRIEIRNN4,832,0008 7T » THEEHH
MEARER o

R M S EETEB AEF497,895,000/8 T ARG A1
407.94%% —ZE—0%E+=— A =-+—H4932,207,000/%
TC ° BRI IRINANEBEEEE B RIRAEEFT
JZHESRNFE -

AMRES BES BT =F+_A=1+—H
#7187,471,0008 T X1ER53.16% 2 —E—HF+—
B =-+—H#87,803,000/% 7T * hFEHNENED
EB AR ES RIEAR 2 AT EEEATE -

FERERB _ET-—=F1+-_A=1+—8%
(1,650,000 TR E-E—NF+=-_A=+—H%
(9,472,000 - WA FZHNAKENENEIEE
MR R IHERRR A EZE AR S —NFE
AT RERE 2 518 o

NEBREREE AR RERSDFRARR DL
45429,00077T * IEZHNREEEZERI RS
S HMERFANEIRRS -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEMWE S Hh

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=1—HLEE

2014 2013

—E2-NE —T-=F
HK$°000 Proportion HK$000 Proportion
WA el WA Byl

Total borrowings BEE
— Bank borrowings —HATIER 206 0.14% 366 0.14%
— Convertible bonds (liability component) —ARES(BEED) 87,803 59.49% 187,471 76.15%
— Finance lease obligation —RERERE 2,350 1.59% - -
— Promissory note —AZ=E 44,291 3,01% - -
134,650 91.24% 187,837 76.29%
Equity attributable to owners of the company RRAIREES ARE AR 12,934 8.76% 58,363 23.711%
Total capital employed EFRNEER 147,584 100% 246,200 100%
The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 91.24% as at 31 December 2014 )5/\ —E+-—A=+—08 A&EFZEEBEL

(2013: 76.29%). The increase was mainly due to the increase in financing
the very substantial acquisition by the issue of promissory note in the second
quarter of the year and the decrease in equity attributable to owners of the
company for the year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s outstanding bank borrowing amount was
approximately HK$206,000 (2013: HK$366,000) because of the expansion into
the information technology business in the year 2013.

The outstanding principal of the convertible bonds amounted to approximately
HK$124,068,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$197,880,000). Its

ﬁ%mm%(?—:ﬁrmm%%%mzim%

Lﬁﬁ$¢F% FEBTANBBARIEEERK
BIEHNE SIMIMARAFEARBBIERE AR
AR ERRERR D ©

R-Z—ME+—A=1—H ' AEEREERITE
/T/\Q\)];EJZOG 000787t (—F — =% : 366,000%7T) * J)
MR = E— = R AR -

R-Z—NF+-_A=+—H A #BREHE2ZE
k@ﬁ >4 B84 /124,068,000 TT( — T — =4 :

maturity date is 12 August 2017 and the effective interest rate of the liability 197,880 000/7573) HIEHAAE—S—+FENA+—
component is approximately 14.13%. H - BEIPS 2 EEMELA14. 13%

The outstanding principal of the promissory note amounted to approximately W —=Z—py&E+—H E+—529§E§@7¥<ﬁ;;¥;}g$/ﬁ
HK$48,600,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil), it carrys 2% interest per  %E49,548,600,0005% 7T.( — =FF) - fIEEER
annum, and its maturity falls on the third anniversary by the date of issue on4 29, X RE{THEI—F @Emﬂ AR ZE=
April 2014. 4F HHREIER o

As at 31 December

Rt+=-A=+-—-8
(HK$°000) 2014 2013
(F87T) —2—mE —ZT_=F
Current assets MEEE 70,110 39,363
Current liabilities mEAE 5,512 190,047
Current ratio RBNEL R 1,271.95% 20.71%

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was 1,271.95% (2013:
20.71%), the increase was mainly contributed by the classification of the
convertible bonds from current liabilities in the year ago to non-current liabilities
in this year upon extension of maturity for three years to 12 August 2017 and
stronger cash and cash equivalents position.

R= m¢+ H_+ B AEBEZRETLEE
12ﬂ%%( =F :2071%) ' BREAGIEHEE
AR RE IJHEEH;Q FE-_Z—+FN\A+=HM
B ESNEFN R BEEYESFAIERS
BfE  URBEINIRE RIREFEER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMWE S Hh

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately HK$32,207,000 (2013: HK$7,895,000). No cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were pledged for general banking facilities as at 31
December 2014 and 2013. As at 31 December 2014, about 96% (2013: 93.0%)
of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were deposits placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong, among which about 96% (2013: 91%) were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar. During the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, most of the Group’s transactions were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and United States dollars (‘US$”), to which HK$
is pegged. The Group had exposure to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations for
Rp on account of its cost of forestry and plantation operations in Indonesia. The
Group did not formally employ any hedging instruments or derivative products
considering the relevant costs and benefits. However, the Group will continue
to monitor closely the exchange rate risk.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Details of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2014 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
of the annual report of the Company. Except the acquisition of the 100%
shareholdings in Ever Hero Group, the Group did not acquire or dispose
of any material subsidiaries and associates during the year ended
31 December 2014.

The Group did not acquire or hold any significant investment during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

As at 31 December 2014 the Group has pledged its motor vehicles in financing
the acquisition whereas as at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any
pledged deposits and assets.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

R-B—NE+_A=+—0 A&EBEHELRES
£A1E B 49/432,207,000/8 7L( = —=4F : 7,895,000
BIL) c RZE—NER—_E—=F+-_A=1+—
A ~EERRES RIRSEEEE BEERS MR
MEZEH - R=ZT—NF+-_A=+—81  £&£E
4996%(—T—=%F : 3% )7 RE MRS HEERF
REBEIRIRTT  HR99%6%(—T—=4: 91%) 5
HBIT

AEENETRERER - RBE-TNFK-F
—ZHE+ A= HLEFE ARENARO RS
AT ~ BB R BB TEMBRSETTIIE - AKE
R IR IO ENE - SUBRLARRER AN
ENEEE XX BHIE LR © 5t RARRIRRA K Flas - ANk
B E SR A TR T Em - EAREE
AL Y By R s

RZFB—MFEF-—A=1+—RH  AEEALEEIMEKX
HARBIE -

HE-T—WF+= A=+ B ILERRR R &R
BARZ HEREATER HHREMERE -
WeESEver HerofE MI100% 255} - AEMNEZE T
—aE+ = A=+ — BT m R
BB RBEAT -

AEEREHER T NFER-_T—=+="A=1+—
AIFFEEKESFEEEEARE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEMWE S Hh

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 25 staff (2013: 30). The Group’s
remuneration policy is built on principle of equality, motivating, performance-
oriented and market-competitiveness. Remuneration packages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff
benefits included provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage
and performance related bonuses. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees and persons of the Group. As at 31 December 2014, after
adjustment made because of the rights issue on 22 July 2014 and share
consolidation effective 26 September 2014, there were outstanding share
options of 256,488 (2013: 1,697,948).

On 22 January 2015, the Company announced that a writ of summons
was issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong
Kong by Au Kai To Karel, as the plaintiff claiming against (i) End
User Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as the 1st Defendant; (ii) the Company, as the 2nd
Defendant; and (iii) Lau Chi Yan Pierre, the managing director and
executive director of the Company, as the 3rd Defendant for, inter alia,
(1) specific performance of an agreement dated 2 May 2013 in relation
to a discloseable transaction of the Company (details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 May 2013);
or (2) alternatively, the damages in the sum of HK$8,000,000 in lieu of
specific performance; and (3) the interest; (4) further and/or other relief;
and (5) the costs. The Company have instructed legal representative
to handle the matter, and was advised that the claim does not have
merits as the agreement had been duly and completely performed. The
Company is considering applying for striking out the claim, subject to
further legal advice.

On 19 March 2015, the Company partially redeemed HK$10 million of
the Promissory Note at a cash consideration of HK$10 million paid to
Hero Win Development Limited, the holder of the Promissory Note (the
“Redemption”). Accordingly, at completion of the Redemption, HK$38.6
million of the Promissory Note remain outstanding.

On 25 August 2014, the Company proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation which became effective on 6 January 2015 (“Capital
Reorganisation”). The Capital Reorganisation involved the following:

(i) each authorised but unissued share of the Company was sub-
divided into eighty shares so that the nominal value of each
unissued share was reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 each
(“Share Sub-division”); and

(i) the paid up capital of each issued share was reduced from
HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 by cancelling the paid up capital to the
extent of HK$0.079 so as to form a new share with nominal
value of HK$0.001 each (“Capital Reduction”).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, aged 44, is currently an executive director, the
chairman, chief executive officer (‘CEQ”), compliance officer, member of the
Nomination Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee, authorised
representative and agent for service of process in Hong Kong of the Company
and as a director of certain relevant subsidiaries of the Company. He is deemed
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Dejin Resources Group Company Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has over 17 years of experience in the field of
audit, business development, corporate finance and financial management. Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He holds a Master of
Science degree in Financial Engineering from City University of Hong Kong
and Bachelor degrees in Arts and Administrative Studies from York University,
Canada.

Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre, aged 39, is currently an executive director, the
managing director, member of Nomination Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee and as a director of certain relevant subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also the executive director of Dejin Resources Group
Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has over 13
years of experience in the field of information system, operational system
and general management. Mr. Lau holds an Executive Master Degree of
Business Administration in General Management from University of Hull, the
United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science from
University of Calgary, Canada. Besides, Mr. Lau is a member of Guangdong
Huizhou Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

(PEARBAHEGHEREEMTEE).
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Chi Man, aged 33, is currently the Associate Director of Cheong
Lee Securities Limited. Mr. Wong has over 5 years of experience in the field
of investment, finance and securities advisory. He holds a Master of Applied
Finance degree from Monash University and a Bachelor degree in Commerce
from Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 49, has served as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October 2012 and
is a member of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee. She holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with
honours in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from The Chartered
Institute of Marketing. She pursued her further study on legal course and has
been awarded a Diploma in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998
and is presently a solicitor of Messrs. Wong & Wong Lawyers, a legal firm in
Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung is currently an independent non-executive director, a
member of the audit committee, a member of the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of each of Success Universe Group
Limited and Dejin Resources Group Company Limited, issued shares of both
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Furthermore, she is currently an independent non-executive director, a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and the chairman of the nomination committee of E
Lighting Group Holdings Limited, a company whose issued shares are listed on
GEM.

Mr. Ng Kay Kwok ("Mr. Ng"), aged 53, has served as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since July 2013 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee. He graduated from the Australian National University with a
Bachelor ’'s Degree in Economics and obtained a Graduate Diploma in
Accounting from Macquarie University. He is a member of CPA Australia
and has extensive experience in accounting and financial management. In
addition, Mr. Ng was an executive director and the chief executive officer of
GET Holdings Limited (“GET”), a company listed on GEM, from 9 July 2010 to
31 May 2011 and from 29 May 2012 to 24 May 2013, he was also the company
secretary of GET from 1 January 2007 to 31 May 2011. Mr. Ng is currently
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee,
a member of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
China Fortune Financial Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (“Mr. Yip”), aged 52, has served as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since July 2013 and is a
member of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. He is the founder and chairman of Great China Capital Group
Limited and Greater China Corporation Consultants Limited, both specialize in
company restructuring, listing, portfolio investment and merger and acquisition.
He has over 30 years of experience in the accounting profession and, coupled
with his hands-on experience and expertise in different industries, has been
engaged in various growing enterprises including those listed on the Stock
Exchange to serve as their strategic and business advisor. Mr. Yip is a member
of various business and commercial organizations and societies in both China
and Hong Kong, including, a member of Guangdong Huizhou Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FEI A RBUA & 3%
EREAHEITZEE), a standing member of Guangdong Federation of Industry
& Commerce (ER % ¥ 7% 8), an executive member of Guangdong
Federation of Industry & Commerce (ERE TRHEEA S (EBE)RE) a
Director of Guangdong Overseas Friendship Association (& 5 & S N &
32 % ) and a member of China Affairs Committee of The Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce Hong Kong (B8 EREEPE N EHEES).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Yau Hong, Thomson, aged 52, joined the Group in December
2010, is the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai has over 21 years
of experience in company secretarial duties as well as corporate governance
and management fields and has taken up senior management positions in
a number of multinational conglomerates and companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of the transparency and
accountability to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). It is the
belief of the Board that the Shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance. The Company is committed to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance in the interests of the Shareholders.
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has reviewed the
Group’s corporate governance practices and is satisfied that the Company has
complied with the code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except for the following deviations
from the code provisions of the Code:

The Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

There is no separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer as
set out in the Code Provision A.2.1.

Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson currently assumes the roles of both the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. Traditionally, the chief executive
officer of the Company also assumes the role of the chairman of the Company
because it is believed that the structure of the Board ensures the balance of
power and authority therefore no need to segregate the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, has
substantial experience that is essential to fulfilling the role of the chairman of
the Company, at the same time, he has the appropriate management skills and
business acumen that are the pre-requisites for assuming the role of the chief
executive officer of the Company in the day-to-day management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of six directors including three independent
non-executive directors with a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the Group. Furthermore, the roles of the management of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by the managing
director and other individuals. The balance of power and authority is therefore
ensured by the current structure of the Board. Whilst it does not believe that
such role separation will improve the corporate performance, the Board, as
well as the Company, intends to comply with this code provision by seeking
and appointing suitable candidate with appropriate background, acknowledge,
experience and calibre to assume the role as the chairman of the Company.
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The Code Provision A.4.2 provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. Every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board considers that the Company is in compliance with paragraph
4(2) of Appendix 3 under the GEM Listing Rules and such a deviation is not
material as casual vacancy is expected seldom happens and duration between
appointment to fill casual vacancy and the immediate following AGM is less
than one year and is considered to be short.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the Chairman and the
managing director of the Company shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
or also not be taken into account in determining the number of directors to retire
in each year. The Board considers that the continuity of the Chairman and
the managing director and their leaderships will be essential for the stability of
the key management of the Board. On the other hand, the Board will ensure
that the directors of the Company other than the Chairman and the managing
director will rotate at least once every three years in order to comply with the
Code Provision A.4.2.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has not adopted a code of conduct nor established written
guidelines regarding the securities transactions by the directors and relevant
employees of the Company but has applied the principles of the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company has also made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company and
the Company is not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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THE BOARD

The Board is charged with the responsibility for the promotion of the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and should take
decision objectively in the best interests of the Company.

Matters reserved for the Board’s decision include those relating to:

- the strategic direction of the Group;

- the objectives of the Group;

- monitoring the performance of the management of the Group;

- ensuring prudent and effective control measures are in place;

- material bank facilities arrangements;

- material acquisitions and disposals of assets and significant
investments;

- material transactions with connected persons;
- material corporate finance transactions including placing or sale
of shares or convertible bonds, corporate restructuring, take-over,

including approval of the announcements and the circulars;

- reviewing and approving quarterly results, half-yearly results and
annual financial statements, declaration of dividends;

- appointment, re-appointment of auditors and determination of their
remuneration; and

- reviewing and determination of the terms and remuneration of the
Directors.
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The management of the Group was delegated the authority and responsibility
by the Board for managing the businesses of the Group, with division heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. The Board meets at least four
times each year and meets as and when required. Appropriate and sufficient
information including notices were provided to the Board’s members in a timely
manner. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held twenty-two
meetings. The attendance of a director appointed part way during this financial
year is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his/her
tenure. The attendance of the Directors at the Board’s meetings (either in
person or by phone) is set out as follows:

EXSCRTASEEREERNNEL  NEEAE
B2 ¥ HPhEHBPEEaETRER %% - &
EEEFROBITUREGH - WAENREFRER A
G c ERF RN ECLENBRIEE KRR BB
ERE)  c NEE-E-NF+_A=+—HIFE
EFGERTTIREE - RAMRFETERE
BRI EER R EAE A R TR &R B
Ft - ERCROGRBBER) HFEEFFERERN
T

Number of attendance

Name of the Directors HERR IR E
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 22/22
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 211 22/22
Wong Chi Man FEX 22/22
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann SR 22/22
Ng Kay Kwok RAHE 22/22
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth 25T 22/22

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board’s meetings and all Board’s minutes are open for inspection by
the Directors upon reasonable notice. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the company secretary has taken over 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

The Directors are enabled, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to discharge
their duties.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of the legal action
against the Directors and the management of the Group. The Board considers
that the Group has sufficient and appropriate liability insurance to cover the
Directors and the management of the Group against any legal liability arising
from their performance of duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, each Director has ensured that
he can give sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs and has
participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.
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Name of Directors

ESEHR

Training received

Pz s

25

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
KEE

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre
2151

Wong Chi Man

S
EEX

Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann
155RIE

Ng Kay Kwok

Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth

s
=pal

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters

BIEER, AN EREEREREEE A EA

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters
BIREER, X AN EREERTERCEE A EHE

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters

BIEER, BN EREEREREEE A EA

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters
BIREER, X AN EREERTERCEE A EHE

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters

BIEER, I EREEREREEE A EA

Reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate governance matters
BIREER, X AHEIE REERTRCEE A EH

BOARD’S COMPOSITION

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises two executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson (also acting as the Chairman
and CEO) and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre (also acting as the Managing Director),
one non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong Chi Man and three INEDs,
namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Yip Kat
Kong, Kenneth. The Board has maintained a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements, promotion and
development of the businesses of the Group. Its composition represents a
mixture of management, technical, marketing, procurement, legal, accounting
and finance which is relevant in managing the businesses in which the Group
is engaged.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
three INEDs of the Company in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all
INEDs of the Company are independent within the definition of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Board’s members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced composition of the Board
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has met
the GEM Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in number of
its members comprising the INEDs. The biographies of the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual
Report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CEO

Presently, Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson assumes the roles of both the Chairman
and the CEO of the Company. The reasons for the deviation from the Code
Provision A2.1 under the Code are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above.

RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company provide that (i) each Director
(except the Chairman and the managing director) is required to retire by
rotation and that one-third (or the number nearest to but not greater than one-
third) of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and be eligible for re-
election at each AGM of the Company; and (ii) any Director appointed by the
Board, either to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition to the existing Board,
will hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the INEDs of the Company has filed a written confirmation to the
Company confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange and the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change in
circumstances which may affect his independence. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the Board still considers the INEDs of the Company to be
independent. Two of the three INEDs of the Company are not appointed for any
specific terms, but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed and employed, on a full time basis, Mr. Lai Yau
Hong, Thomson as the company secretary. He is an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and is an individual who, by virtue of his
professional qualifications and relevant experience, is, in the opinion of the
Board, capable of discharging the functions of company secretary. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the company secretary has taken over 15
hours of relevant professional training.

The company secretary is responsible not just for taking minutes of the Board’s
meetings but also for supporting the board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed and for
advising the Board through the Chairman and the CEO on governance matters
and also for facilitating induction and professional development of directors.

The company secretary reports to the Chairman and the CEO while all directors
have access to the advice and services of him to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.
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A physical board meeting is required to be held to discuss and approve any
change in the company secretary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main roles and responsibilities
of these three committees, including all authorities delegated to them by the
Board, as set out in the terms of reference, are published on the Company’s
website at www.merdeka.com.hk. The different committees’ independent views
and recommendations not only ensure proper control of the Group but also the
continual achievement of the high corporate governance standards expected of
a listed company. The chairman of each committee reports the outcome of the
committee’s meetings to the Board for further discussion and approval.

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
established the Nomination Committee in 2012 with specific written terms of
reference in line with the code provisions under the Code.

The responsibilities and authorities of the Nomination Committee include
such responsibilities and authorities set out in the relevant code provisions
of the Code and its duties include: (i) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of INEDs; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and
the CEO.

The Nomination Committee will at all times, have a minimum of three members,
a majority of which shall be INEDs and presently consists of five members
comprising three INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Ng Kay
Kwok and Mr. Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth and two executive directors, namely
Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is elected by the members who are present at the
meeting.
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The Nomination Committee will meet as and when required to discharge
its responsibilities, but not less than once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee held two meetings. The
attendance of a member appointed as a director part way during this financial
year is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his/her
tenure. The attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee’s meetings (either in person or by phone) is set out as
follows:
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Number of attendance

Name of the members of the Nomination Committee RELZESREHA H IR
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson IRIEE 2/2
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 2= 2/2
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann e 2/2
Ng Kay Kwok RAHE 2/2
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth ®2ET 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the members of the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Nomination Committee also identified and selected
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the respective appointment of individuals
nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of INEDs for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee was
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties and responsibilities and
at the Company’s expense to seek independent professional advice, where
and when necessary.

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
established the Remuneration Committee in 2005 with specific written terms of
reference in line with the code provisions under the Code. The Remuneration
Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for the remuneration of the directors and the senior
management of the Group; (ii) reviewing the remuneration package including
the performance-based bonus and incentive rewards for the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group; and (iii) reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board the compensation, if any, payable to
the executive directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment.
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The Remuneration Committee for the year ended 31 December 2014 consisted
of five members comprising three INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann,
Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth and two executive directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is elected by the members who are
present at the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings. The attendance of a member appointed as a director part way
during this financial year is stated by reference to the number of meetings held
during his/her tenure. The attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee at the Remuneration Committee’s meetings (either in person or by
phone) is set out as follows:

BE_T N+ A=+—HILFE  FHEES
mABKEAR - ERBRRE=REIFTESRSR
et REBGAERESTRE  UEMEHITE
EREERAERIBCELE - FHEZESTEALE
BRLZKEHEE o

REZE-_Z—ME+-A=1+—HILFE ' HFMEE
SORTREH NMAMBFRTEZRERESZ
R BB EIERRIEE AR AR
S - $rNE B @R B CRE LA BEFR) LEFHNE

BggRBEReT

Number of attendance

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee HMESSREM T HERE
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 2/2
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 28 22
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann 1550 2/2
Ng Kay Kwok RIEE 2/2
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth EHT 2/2

At least one of such meetings, the current framework, policies and structure for
the remuneration of the directors and the senior management of the Group was
reviewed by the members of the Remuneration Committee who reported to the
Board of their reviews with recommendations. The Remuneration Committee
also reviewed the specific remuneration packages including the terms of
employment, incentive rewards and performance-based bonus of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group and the fees payable to the
INEDs of the Company.

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain and
motivate the executive Directors and the senior management of the Group
by linking their rewards to the corporate and individual performance, job
complexity and responsibilities, so that the interests of the executive Directors
are aligned with those of the Shareholders. No Director can, however, approve
his/her own remuneration.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the executives and the employees
serving for the Group, the Company has adopted the share option scheme
in 2012. The share option scheme enable the eligible participants to obtain
an ownership interest in the Company by payment of the exercise price with
reference to the market price of the Shares at the time of grant and thus
to reward to the participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements in this Annual Report and details of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 3 May 2012 are set out in the section
headed “Report of the Directors” in this Annual Report.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in 2001 with specific
written terms of reference formulated in accordance with the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
ensure the objectivity and credibility of the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee consisted of three members comprising three INEDs,
namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Yip Kat Kong,
Kenneth for the year ended 31 December 2014, one of whom is a qualified
accountant and has extensive experience in accounting and financial matters.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is elected by the members who are
present at the meeting. All members of the Audit Committee hold the relevant
industry or legal, accounting and financial experience necessary to give advice
on the Board’s strategies and other related matters. All members of the Audit
Committee have complete and unrestricted access to the external auditors and
all employees of the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing the Company’s
quarterly results, half-yearly results and annual financial statements and
making recommendations as to the approval of the Company’s quarterly
results, half-yearly results and annual financial statements by the Board; (ii)
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and the terms of
engagement including the remuneration of the external auditors; (jii) discussing
with the external auditors the nature and scope of the audit; (iv) monitoring
and assessing the independence and objectivity of the external auditors
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; (v) reviewing and monitoring financial reporting and the reporting
judgement contained in them; and (vi) reviewing financial and internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget), accounting policies and practices with the
management of the Group, and internal and external auditors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held five
meetings. The attendance of a member appointed as a director part way during
this financial year is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during
his/her tenure. The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee’s meetings (either in person or by phone) is set out as follows:
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Number of attendance
Name of the members of the Audit Committee ERZEGREHNSE IR
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann 155LE 5/5
Ng Kay Kwok RAHET 5/5
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth EEHIL 5/5
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the members of the Audit Committee
have met with the Group’s external auditors to discuss the annual audit plan.
The meeting of the Audit Committee was attended by the members of the Audit
Committee and the external auditors of the Company. The external auditors
also made presentations to the Audit Committee on the findings on key issues
addressed in the annual audit.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
with the management of the Group the financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the internal control and risk management system
of the Group with the internal auditor. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
quarterly results for the period ended 31 March 2014 and 30 September 2013,
the half-yearly results for the period ended 30 June 2014 and the annual results
for year ended 31 December 2013 of the Company, and confirmed that the
preparation of such complied with the applicable accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and adequate disclosures has been made, before announcement of these
results.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board to review the re-appointment
of Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited as the Company’s external auditors
subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA Limited, is set out as
follows:
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Fees paid/payable

Services rendered FriR AR TS 2t ENER
HK$’000

FBT

Audit services EIZIRTE 628

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such financial
statements. The Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs. Elite Partners
CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’
Report” in this Annual Report.
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The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to the events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
accounts.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining the Group’s internal control system and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group’s internal control system has been designed for
safeguarding assets, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring
reliability of the financial information. Through the Company’s internal audit
team, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group which covers all material controls, including
operational, financial and compliance controls and risk management functions.

The internal audit team of the Company reviews the major operational, financial
and compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group on a
continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis. The internal audit team of the Company presents their internal
audit plan annually to the CEO for approval and they also discuss and agree
their audit plan with the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee’s meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention
of company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

EEMR - EEH—ABERR - SRERA - A
BRHEE - WEWRAEBR A GEERERARAINTE
RERNNEFMERNTHAZFRIER - At - EF
FUBRMSESEERRIRR -

REBEETE K AR E X

EXe2HAREY EERAKERRREIEHIE kiR
ATRZHIE 2 R © AREEAFREIEHIE IR RREE
B ZEBFE OB RERMIEEN Z A MR o
FRANTNBEZNE  EEEREAREAELE
PIEEAER(BREE  MERARERE  URER
BIETIEE) 2 MIRREEIEHIE 2 AR °

ARRAEEZ MEAREEEENARE 2 T 24
B M RARESE - ARRREIRINEE - BHEARE
REEREAEE AT EE - AREINEERZ
NEBEFRTTIRAEE 2 A BB LT BICAE L -
FEENEZZBeex LREZZBamMHE
BREZAE -

BRERBHARRIEBIAEZEF

RIEAMAEE815 - EfA— B ERIEE 2k B H#E
BRLAARRREERAEERARRIERD &
=)+ 2 —IRERAMI AR A BAAAREE
eRWEBHHERME R  BREFS FMREFIA
g DEEBEE@RERFERANEREE : BAERE
ERNIE2ZESKEMQ)EANERT - HE2%B —+—
@NBA - EFgREEHEBARE F AIEEEXA
AETTUREF R BRALZ  MEZERAREES
REBEAGMEEEERNE R EBHRAARERN
REEERA °

MEESRHEN

BRAGEANEARXEARFAERERLRBELER
LB AR AMERWEA -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERELGRE

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Article 86(2) of the Articles sets out that the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board, subject to the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles, no person other than a Director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such written notice(s) shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to its
shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with its
shareholders through various means. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries. The
Company also updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.

The corporate website of the Company has provided an effective
communication platform to the shareholders and the investors as well as the
general publics.

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The subsidiaries are engaged in the forestry business, plantation business
and trading business, including the trading of various brands of milk powder
products to customers based in Hong Kong and information technology
business and it has also diversed into the money lending business. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 45 to 51.

The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year (2013:
Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial periods/years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 122. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
convertible bonds during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set
out in notes 25, 34 and 27 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31
December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands,
amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2013: HK$83,472,000). This included
the Company’s share premium account amounting to approximately
HK$810,692,000 (2013: HK$708,125,000) which is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the financial year is as
follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s

total sales

hAEEAHERR L
2014 2013
—Z—MF —T—=4F
Largest customer BREP 28% 37%
Five largest customers hARE LB 70% 83%

Percentage of the Group’s
total purchase

hAEEAKEBEER DL
2014 2013
—F-E —T =
Largest supplier SALLIER 68% 77%
Five largest suppliers AR ER4REE 93% 99%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of
this Annual Report are as follows:

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre

Wong Chi Man

Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann
Ng Kay Kwok
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth and Ms Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann have to retire at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company and being eligible, they offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

All INEDs of the Company are appointed for a term of one year. According to
the articles of association of the Company, all Directors (except the Chairman
and the managing director) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs of the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and, as at the date of this Annual Report, still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 20 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All INEDs are appointed for a term of one year and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

The non-executive Director has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of two years.

The two executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, and Mr. Lau
Chi Yan, Pierre have each entered into a two-year service contract with the
Company commencing from 24 August 2012 respectively.
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No Director had a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2014.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company implements policies and practices that help conserve resources,
improve energy efficiency and raise environmental awareness among our
staff. We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation that
pays close attention to conserving the natural resources on Earth. We strive
to minimise our environmental impact while ensuring high standards in our
service quality. We focus on paper and toner usage throughout all of our daily
operation and we have always been devoted to reduce energy consumption as
we closely monitor energy consumption at our offices.

HARMONIOUS WORKPLACE, EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
AND WELFARE

In order to fully develop staff competence and potential, the Group has an
employee handbook in place for the employees to understand the policy of
the Group. To equip staff members with necessary skills and knowledge to
meet future challenges and professional requirements, especially those who
are involved in regulated businesses and activities, the Group encourages
the employees to attend a wide range of training in the areas of regulatory
requirements and compliance.

Moreover, plenty of staff activities were organized for employees, including
annual dinner, Christmas party, birthday party, and so on and so forth. The
sense of belonging of employees was enhanced and they have strong bonding
with each other.

By offering competitive remuneration packages and comprehensive fringe
benefits to our employees, our staff turnover rate remains stable, while job
performance and productivity are maintained at satisfactory levels.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 3 May 2012 and was effective from that date. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.

As at 31 December 2014, there were 256,488 share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme. Based on these outstanding share options,
the total number of shares available for issue is 256,488, which represents
approximately 0.067% and 0.067% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 and the date of this report respectively.
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Details of the movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme — AER - B ERAEST2IE T 2 B L IEREZ BEE

during the year were as follows: PUNNE
Number of share options
BrERERY
Adjusted Adjusted
during the exercise
period upon price of the
effective Original ~ share options
Outstanding Cancelled/ of rights  Outstanding Date of Exercise Price of exercise  after share
asat Granted  Exercised Lapsed issue and asat grant of periodof  theshares  price of the consolidation
1January  duringthe  duringthe  during the share 31 December the share the share  before the share  and rights
2014 period period period  consolidation 2014 options options ~date of grant options issue
R=E-mF RRBAH
RZB-mE MR R 2R Rt
Name or category -f-A REREE/ AlERE St-8 BRBRE  BABMRE  RUAME  GRBRE EREREZ
of the participants SHENL LT HAGR  RERER  RMERTE Kb REREE HAGR  ZBEBE 2fTRA ZRE CRETRE SREGRE
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(1) (zx2) (BzH1) (Fzr1)

per share per share per share
8 & &k

Non-executive director ~ F&i78S
Wong Chi Man BEX 59,230 - - - (50,282) 8,948 171112013 17112013 0.01 0.01 3.36
16/1/2023

Independent non-executive Bi3H7ES

director
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRE 69,103 - - - (58,664) 10,439 1THR013 17112013+ 001 0.01 3.36
16/1/2023
Employeesandother ~ [EEREMAER
eligible participants S5E
Employees B8 177,692 - - - (150,851) 26,841 30562012 30512012 0017 0017 568
29152022
Other eligivle participants ~ EtABHRAEE 1,391,923 - - - (1,181,663) 210,260 30562012 30/52012- 0017 0017 568
29152022
1,697,948 - - (AR 256488
Notes: PSE
1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of 1. BEBRE 2 ITEEERENMEET - #I% - 74
capitalisation issue, rights issue, subdivision or consolidation of the shares of the HAHARRRD - AR RRAEMIELEE M
Company, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. As a result of TEHFRE - RN T —MF+ A +=H7KK
the rights issue completed on 23 July 2014 and the share consolidation of 8 into 1 NRER—RZBRHEHR_ZE—NFLAZTN
effective on 29 September 2014 and, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the BAEME - REBESCBRER 8 2R RGNS - B
Share Option Scheme, the number and the exercise price of share options have SRR 2 BB RITEED BRI TIE -
been adjusted accordingly.
2. The price of the shares of the Company before the date of the grant of the share 2. RATIRMAELBERER L B 2B - AR
options is the closing price of the shares of the Company as quoted on the Stock BESRERER T B 8IAT2 225 AR A B FO
Exchange on the trading day immediately before the date on which the share AR W E o

options were granted.
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Save as disclosed above, at the date of this report, no other share options were
exercised subsequent to the balance sheet date.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no share options were granted by
the Company.

The fair value of the share options granted during the period for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was HK$Nil (2013: HK$3,322,000) of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of approximately HK$Nil (2013:
HK$3,322,000) during the period.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the directors and chief executive of the Company
and/or any of their respective associates had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and/or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM Listing Rules:
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(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company: @i REATRGBZHE :
Approximate
Number of the shares interested percentage of
and nature of interest the total issued
RERZZRABAREZNE share capital of
Personal Corporate Total the Company
ERDRAERTRE
Name of directors EEHE fBA AT By BEHANADY
(%)
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson ®EE 185,938 32,812,500 (note) 32,998,438 8.62
(PitzE)
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre ey 1,328,125 - 1,309,125 0.35
Note: 5T -

These shares are interest of a controlled corporation, lvana, which is wholly
owned by Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson.

ZERD REFI A Rlivana( RREERE 2 EHER)
P 5
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(ii)  Long positions in the underlying shares of the share options (i) PREAA B EEREST SR HELBRE

granted under the share option scheme of the Company: 2R 2R

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
Date of grant  Exercise period Number of the the total the total issued
of the share  of the share Exercise price  share options underlying  share capital of
options  options per share outstanding shares  the Company
WARTRE BAARERT
BrERE: BRBRE ZB% e ki
Name of directors £33 RLBH 2768 BRAEE BRENY  AEROAY BREA
HKS (%)

AT
Wong Chi Man BEX 17112013 17/1/2013-16/1/2023 3.36 8,948 8,948 0.002
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann HRE 17112013 17/1/2013-16/1/2023 3.36 10,439 10,439 0.003

(iii) Long positions in the underlying shares of the convertible bonds (i) RIS T AR EE > ARG 2 17
of the Company:

Approximate

Principal percentage
amount Number of of the total
of the the total issued share
convertible underlying capital of the
bonds shares Company
HARDT BT
Name of the holder of ARRES ARRES 2 RABEE 2
the convertible bonds BEASE rEEH MERRDEE BHREDE
HK$ (%)
BT
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson KEE 110,000,000 297,619,048 77.70
Note: These convertible bonds (originally due on 12 August 2011 and st : ZEAMRER(ARE-Z——FN\A
extended to 12 August 2017) were issued by the Company on 12 August +TEEE=T—EFN\A+=AEE) T
2008 as part of the consideration to acquire the forestry business. ARBRZZZENFNATZBEITER
They are unlisted, interest-free and convertible into the shares of the WHEMARERB 2 HBARE - RIELDH - &
Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.3696 per share B ARG TR HAREBAR0.3696 48 T %,
of the Company (subject to adjustment according to the terms of the AR R (RIR PTHRAREH 2 16K F]
convertible bonds). The interest is held by a controlled corporation, TIRE) - ZERRRRACEDEEE 2T
Ivana, which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheung. HlAElvanatF g °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the directors and B EXWEEIN R-ZT—WE+-A=+—H I
chief executive of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had ~ ET AN AR EENESTHABN, HFEEEEZ
any interest and short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures ~ {EfAIE ARAKR AT RS EEARESEE (FER
of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning &5 M EASIEMIEXVER) ZB&fn - HBREMMD R EHEE
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by 1+ HEHBELEAANR RIRIEE S &S 1505352
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the (R EFEE 2 EM - SURIEE S MHIEIEFIEXVES
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM  siAI¥4R TR BIZBEIE AN 7] KBt S T a(E(ahEas

Listing Rules. KogeRE o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2014 was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
or associated corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their respective spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of
its associated corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (not being the directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of
the total
issued share

Capacity and Number of the capital of the
Name of shareholders nature of interest shares interested Company
AN EE BT
BRI
REREH SO RERNE BERZZROHE BABSL
(%)
Ivana Directly beneficially owned 32,812,500 8.57
HEEERER
Approximate
Principal percentage
amount Number of of the total
of the the total issued share
convertible underlying capital of the
bonds shares Company
EARRRE BT
Name of the holder of AHRRES ERESZ RAHEEZ
the convertible bonds BEAER N R A AR BHES
HK$ (%)
BT
Ivana Ivana 110,000,000 287,619,048 77.70
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Note: These convertible bonds (originally due on 12 August 2011 and
extended to 12 August 2017) were issued by the Company on 12 August
2008 as part of the consideration to acquire the forestry business.
They are unlisted, interest-free and convertible into the shares of the
Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.3696 per share
of the Company (subject to adjustment according to the terms of the

convertible bonds).

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executive of the
Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at 31 December
2014, had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Code set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the financial year under review, except for the deviations from Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2. Detailed information of such deviations and their
respective considered reasons as well as other information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company as
required under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial period under
review and up to the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by Elite Partners, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
31 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B BEM R S

?)

To the shareholders of Merdeka Mobile Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B AASAE R ST 6 B R AT FRANE]
ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Merdeka Mobile
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 45 to 121, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
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MERDEKA MOBILE GROUP LIMITED E&BBEEAERAT

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2015

Yip Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number P05131

Suites 2B-4A, 20th Floor,

Tower 5, China Hong Kong City,
33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
fReiRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

E-2-mE+-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —ET-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FHExT FHT
REVENUE ON 6 69,877 40,762
Cost of sales SHEERKAN (61,581) (38,677)
Gross profit EF 8,296 2,085
Other income, other gains and losses EAbURA - EpbUizs K EsE 6 40,305 2,316
Operating expenses Fdaliaig (4,570) (5,923)
Administrative expenses 1THRER (13,555) (10,730)
Impairment of forest concessions MR RIE (170,811) (70,000)
Impairment of prepayments, deposits TENRIE - Be Rk
and other receivables E b FEUGRIR R E (6,004) =
Impairment of trade receivables B S IEWEIBRIE (2,130) =
Impairment of goodwill PPERE (16,519) -
Written off of construction in progress EETEMER - (5,000)
Written off of property, plant and equipment YE - iR IR AR - (2,347)
Equity-settled share option expenses AR 4 B ST RE AR R - (3,275)
Loss from operations Kl =] (164,988) (92,874)
Finance costs BB 7 (15,111) (22,279)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB ATESE 8 (180,099) (115,153)
Income tax Fris i 11 (640) -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEERE (180,739) (115,153)
Attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company RNATIRFERB A 12 (172,225) (109,167)
Non-controlling interests IR (8,514) (5,986)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEERE (180,739) (115,153)
(restated)
(E51)
LOSS PER SHARE EREER
Basic and diluted BEARNEE 14 (HK#7£$0.47)  (HK/E7L$0.53)

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements.

FEE121 B IR S TSRS 2 —3 5



MERDEKA MOBILE GROUP LIMITED E&BBEEAERAT

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ST

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BHE_ZT-—NNF+_A=+—HIFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive loss:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Exchange difference on translating of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements.

FEEFE
Hip 2 mEES

HIZrIpe R MABRR ZAR

BEGINAB LR Z RS
HIFE 5 ZERR

FEEREAEE
FE(E 2 AREIE :

EANCIG 3722 DN
FErER AR

2014

e
HK$’000
FHBT

(180,739)

(180,739)

(172,225)
(8,514)

(180,739)

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
Tt

(115,153)

(76)

(115,229)

(109,243)
(5,986)

(115,229)

FE52E1218 2 M L EITERE < — 35 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MG ER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—mNF+=ZA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mfF =%
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
st FET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB MR 15 4,764 1,245
Forest concessions RN 16 29,000 199,811
Goodwill B 17 34,000 6,341
Other financial asset HinomEE 18 5,025 =
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 72,789 207,397
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 20 931 =
Trade receivables = E TN 21 7,132 2,300
Loan receivables JEER 22 3,220 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BR®IE - Bk
H A e kI8 23 26,620 29,168
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRE&EBEER 24 32,207 7,895
Total current assets MEEERE 70,110 39,363
Total assets EEHAE 142,899 246,760
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REERREE
Equity attributable to owners KATREREA
of the Company iR RER
Issued capital BEITIRA 25 30,643 3,859
Reserves Ei 26(a) (17,709) 54,504
12,934 58,363
Non-controlling interests FERER (9,472) (1,650)
Total equity EREE 3,462 56,713
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 87,803 =
Promissory notes AR 28 44,291 -
Finance lease obligation due more than one year A —F145|H1 2 Al &R EAE 29 1,831 =
133,925 -

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F52EN21 B 2 AR I F IS 2 — 35 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MG ER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

2014 2013

—E-ImF ZE—=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

BfaE FHEx FHT

Current liabilities REEE

Bank borrowings RITIER 30 206 366
Finance lease obligation due within one year R—FAEIE 2 AR EAE 29 519 =
Trade payables 2B S E IR 31 2,193 917
Other payables and accruals HA RN RIERESBE 32 1,954 1,293
Tax payable FEI RIS 640 -
Convertible bonds AR RS 27 - 187,471
Total current liabilities mEAERE 5,512 190,047
Total liabilities EEAE 139,437 190,047
Total equity and liabilities BRREZREEEE 142,899 246,760
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 64,598 (150,684)
Total assets less total liabilities EEHABEREEEE 3,462 56,713

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
REE
Director

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements.

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre
2181

Director

FEE2E1218 2 MR L I TEIRE < —3F 5 © o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeBRREREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
 E—E-—E+_A=+—HILEE

Atributable to owners of the Company

KOAREEENES
Equity
Share component of Share Capital  Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium  Contributed  convertible option  reduction fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ account surplus bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
TERES. BRERE  RaUR  ENR® #ER

ORfRE  REMEERE  AAER  BEDR i it BE  RiEE it B RS
HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'OD  HKS'OD  HKS'000  HKS'0D0  HKS'OOD  HKS'O0D  HKS'OD  HKS'000
T T i fin T fin T T T T i

At1 January 2013 W-%-=§-5-8 85,786 703,864 66,710 273 974 - i (170.287) 115,802 43% 120,138
Changes in equity for 2013; T-SEERRY:
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - - (109,167) ~ (109,167) (5,986) (115,183
Other comprehensive oss Ah2EER - - - = = = (76) = (76) S (76)
Total comprefensive loss 2HEER - - - - - - (6) (109167 (109,43) (5,986)  (115229)
Issue ofrghts shares B 36,669 - - - 3,669 36,669
Expenses incurted in connection with issue of BlRERAELRR
rights shares - (1,979) - - (1,979) (1,979)
Equity-setlled share opton arrangements IWhEENERBRERS - - 330 - 330 330
Issug of new shares upon exercise of shars options. 1 (F B ERER B T3RA 5885 3,286 = (3286) = 5885 5885
Forfiture of share optons BRBRELR - - = 47 = n @
Issue of consideration shares BARERG 8,000 (3400) = = = 4600 4600
Partial redemption of convertble bonds RO TRRES - - (3450) - - (3450) (3450)
Captal reducton of ssued shares BRARGERHE (132931) - - - 1% - -
Issue of new shares upon placing REREHRN 450 6,354 - - 6,804 6,804
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RTB-=E+2A=1-BR
“2-mE-A-A 3859 108,125 93 132,931 ( 58,363 56,713
Changes in equity for 2014 I-MEERRY:
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - - - (s (25 (B5W) (160739
Other comprehensive oss Ah2EEE - - - - - - - - - - -
Total comprefensive loss 2EEER = = = - - - - (125 (11225 (8514)  (180,739)
Issug ofrghts shares v U514 69,298 - - - - - = 9812 = 9812
Acquisiton of a subsidary WE-THELA - - - - - - - - - 692 692
Partil redemption of convertle bonds BEPATERER - - - (2585) - - - - (2585) = (2559)
Issue of new shares upon placing REREHRN 210 33269 - - - - - - 353 = 35%
At 31 December 2014 H-F-REt-A=1-A 30,643 810,692 66,710 2128 93 132,931 (54)  (1,051,679) 12,934 (9472) 3462

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~— * I RERR B BIERERA ISR RR NS ERHE
HK$17,709,000 (2013: HK$54,504,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. #917,709,0007 70( == — =4 : 54,504,000/ 7C) °

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F52EN21 B 2 AR I F IS 2 — 35 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FElaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
 E—E—NE+_A=+—HILEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on fair value upon extension of convertible bonds
Written off of construction in progress

Written off of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of forest concessions

Impairment of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of inventories

Change in fair value of other financial asset

Gain on early redemption of convertible bonds

Loss on early redemption of promissory notes
Equity-settled share option expenses

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Increase in loan receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Income taxs paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on bank borrowings and finance lease obligation

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options
Proceeds from rights issue

Proceeds from placing of shares

Redemption of convertible bonds

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of promissory notes

Repayment of finance lease obligation

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

EERBRETE
BBEIER

BERA

B A

e
HEME BB REE 2 EE
AR ESIE R 2 A E
ERTIZMER

Y% - R AR AR
RS ERE

TBNFIE - e MEMERGIERE
Z SN IERE

REERE

GFERE

Hit St EE N HEED
IR I O AR (E S v Wk
RO =g 2 EiE
ARG AL B OB S B AR AR S,

T
SIS (1),
MR

BNFOR ~ ime REMEUGRIE
B S ENFIREE I, CF)
HApENROa g T B &g Ol

ReEES (PR Z2HRE
ERFEH

TGP 2 IR F R

RETHRERNE

EHAE

BEME - BELRE
HEVE - BB RRABPISTIR
BB AR < R ERNFE

RERBPTR CHE R

RMEETBHRSRE

IR TIER KB E R E AR
ZAE

TTERSTRB M B TR TS 50R

HARPS IR

B SR PSR

B E AR (B

BRI TR

(BB 2R

EERBEREAE

REEBEL RS NEFE

RERRESEEER
2, () B8

FHREe RReFERE

HNESTE R BB R

FRASRATEEER

2014
—E—mE
HK$°000
TR

(180,099)

15,111

(175)
1,241
15

(39,480)

170,811
6,004
2,130

16,519
390
1,748
(2,752)
388

(8,149)
(1,321)
(3,362)
(3,220)

(11,166)

276
615

(26,327)
(1,037)

(27,364)
175
2,317)
10
(2,132)

(64)

93,812

35,539
(72,811)
(160)
(2,400)
(108)

53,808

24,312
7,895

32,207

2013
—T—=F
HK$’000
BT

(115,153)

22,279

(1)
5,098
87

5,000
2,347
70,000

(79)
5,885
34,690

(25,647)
(59)

21,598

5,351
2,620
(76)

7,895
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Statement of Financial Position

MBI AR =

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—mNF+=ZA=+—H

2014 2013
=i —F—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
st FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB ARz 19 142,613 331,002
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE - Re REM IR 23 2,081 6,077
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EEIER 24 28,736 7,098
Total current assets MEVEERE 30,817 13,175
Total assets BEEAE 173,430 344,177
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REEZERERE
Issued capital BB TR 25 30,643 3,859
Reserves it 26(b) (15,015) 127,922
Total equity W4T 15,628 131,781
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 87,803 =
Promissory notes HH IR 28 44,291 =
132,094 =
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HENFIE RERTAE 32 600 171
Due to subsidiaries FERHIB A RFIE 19 25,108 24,754
Convertible bonds AR (ES 27 - 187,471
Total current liabilities MBRERE 25,708 212,396
Total liabilities 8E8E 157,802 212,396
Total equity and liabilities BREZREEEE 173,430 344177
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (BF)FE 5,109 (199,221)
Total assets less total liabilities EEABEREERAE 15,628 131,781

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre

REE 218
Director Director
= EE

The notes on pages 52 to 121 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 35 50 5 B 5

31 December 2014

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, its registered office is located at the offices of Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and the principal place of business is located at Room 1502,
Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The directors consider that the Company’s ultimate controlling parent
company is lvana Investments Limited, which is a private company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the principal activity of
the Company was investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries comprised trading business, forestry business, money
lending business, plantation business and information technology
business.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new and revised HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention except for financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

DNEEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 35 45 5 B

31 December 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of over the years are included
in the profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other member of Group.

All intragroup transaction balance, income and expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 35 40 5 B i

31 December 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

WS RANERETE R -
e cERERRENRFHEER
B MAHEERASERERE B
AW IR NBREE - FIE
ER BB R AR B A IRER BT
EHEM BT 2 A 2 AMNETE
B - WEREBRA—RENELR
FEIRER R IR ©

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition-date fair
values, except that:

. a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of temporary
differences and carryforwards of an acquiree that
exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Tax;

. assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

. liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and machinery 12.5% to 20%
Roads and bridges 20%

Leasehold improvement Over the lease term
Computer and office equipment 20% to 33%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Forest concession rights acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. These concession rights give the Group
rights to logging trees in the allocated concession forests
in designated areas in the Papua Province of Indonesia.
Amortisation is charged on a unit of production basis over the
estimated useful lives of forest concession rights.

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses or at revalued amounts, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit
or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation. Finance charges,
which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
charged to profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Other than investments in subsidiaries and associates,
the Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) loans
and receivables and (ii) available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. Where the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is recognised
on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTEERIVEE (@)
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREEREE

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;
0 breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are reversed against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and promissory
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components
The component parts of the convertible bonds issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
an equity instrument.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTEERIVEE (@)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued) SREERKRATAGE)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components
(Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the lives of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

When the Company extinguishes a convertible bonds before
maturity through an early redemption or repurchase in which
the original conversion privileges are unchanged, the Company
allocates the consideration paid and any transaction costs
for the repurchase or redemption to the liability and equity
components of the instrument at the date of the transaction.
The method used in allocating the consideration paid and
transaction costs to the separate components is consistent with
that used in the original allocation to the separate components
of the proceeds received by the Company when the convertible
instrument was issued. The gain or loss relating to the equity
component is recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the liability component is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in
first-out. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwiill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate. Contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition.

2.
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2. SUMMARY
(Continued)

i)

a)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are carried at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of an outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of an outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or
iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) EAAT ABEREMAMNU TG

conditions applies: HEEES

i) The entity and the Group are members of the i) ZEREAEEER
same group (which means that each parent, —EB/HKERA] °
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the ii) —ERAS—EE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a (B —EBHEAR
member of a group of which the other entity is a RN ENGIEAEES
member). BN DRE o)

WA ENF] o

i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third i) ZEREAEERR

party. —EB=ZFHNEER
E‘l o

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and iv) —EBR—E=7H

the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BERA MB—E
AR —F=HHE
—UNCI

) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBRNEENE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or AEBEEB T HERE
an entity related to the Group. #iE BB R AIET

£

vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZE R Aa)fTil AL

vii)

person identified in a).

A person identified in a) i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2. SUMMARY
(Continued)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably as follows:

i)

i)

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
the title is passed.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
carried at their present values.

2.
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i)

i)

Financial Statements

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes
Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FESTEERIVEE (@)

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs APPLIED

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current
year.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

Levies

Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — INT 21

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made certain key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, as discussed below.

(i) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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4. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of assets

The Group’s management has to exercise judgement in
determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (ii) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be charged. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
are initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

o
=]

(iii)

(iv)
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SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on its products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a) the trading business segment engaged in the trading of goods,
components and accessories;

(b) the forestry business segment engaged in logging of trees, the
operations of wood-processing factories and the sale of sawn
timber, other timber and wood products;

(c) the plantation business segment engaged in plantation of oil
palm trees and sale of palm oil;

(d) the money lending business segment engaged in provision of
loan financing; and

(e) the information technology business segment engaged in
distributorship of information technology products and the
provision of relevant technical support services.

Executive directors, who are the chief operating decision makers,
monitor the results of its operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment loss, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The
adjusted loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s loss
before tax except that interest income, finance costs, equity-settled
share option expenses, as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arose from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment assets include non-current assets and current assets with
the exception of certain assets unallocated to an individual reportable
segment.

Segment liabilities include non-current liabilities and current liabilities
with the exception of tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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MERDEKA MOBILE GROUP LIMITED E&BBEEAERAT

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEERE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZ2—_ZE—MNE+_HA=1+—HILEFE
Money Information
Trading Forestry lending Technology
husiness business business business Total  Reconciliations Group Total
HKS 000 Thn B5%H WREH HERE  EARKER Aif Hhag AEmAs
Segment revenue: AP
Revenue from external customers ANEREHE 53200 - 396 16,261 69,877 - 69,877
Operating profioss) fa&fla/(BR) 797 (128579) 396 (17818) (145,204) L] (145,470)
Inferest income FIEWA - - - - - 175 175
Finance costs HERA - (12,820) - (2,266) (15,086) (25) (15.111)
Reconclled items: HEER
Unallocated expenses RARFS - - - - - (19,993) (19,993)
Profit{loss) before tax RiaRE /(5B 197 (141,399) 396 (20,084) (160,290) (19,809) (180,099)
Impairment loss on RETERARE
forest concessions - (170,811) - - (170,811) - (170,811)
Impairmentloss on prepayment, deposits ~ BFfEUE « lx RE MM
and other receivables BRERE - - - ) ) (6,000) (6,004)
Impairment loss on trade receivables BHRIGIEESE (1,732) - - (398) (2:130) - (2,130)
Impairment loss on goodil EEREER - - - (16,519) (16,519) - (16,519)
Deprecation i 1G] - @ (75) (85) (1,156) (124)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_T—=F+"_A=1+—HIFE
Money Information
Trading Forestry lending Technology
business business business business Total  Reconciliations Group Total
HKS 000 TEn B5%H WAEH HEER  EARKER fif YR KEBRi
Segment revenue: AP
Revenue from extemal customers mIEEFEE 38,038 S = 2724 40762 = 40762
Operating profi/oss) mEHR/ (Bl 92 (78,768) = (846) (18632) 10034 (68,59)
Interest income FIBsA - 1 - - 1 = 1
Finance costs BERR - (22.200) - 19) (22219) - (2219)
Reconclled items: HEER
Unallocated expenses RARFS - - - - - (21,002) (21,002
Equity-setfled share option WREEENERERE
expenses 5 - - - - - (3.279) (3.275)
Proftoss) before tax AR/ (E8) 92 (100967) = (925) (100910) (14,243) (115,153)
Impaiment loss on RETERERE
forest concessions - (70,000) - - (70,000) - (70,000)
Depreciation i - (4720) - 6 (4.726) (312) (5,09)
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. D EBERE (@)
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+=-A=1+—H

Money  Information
Trading Forestry Plantation lending  Technology

business business business business business Total Reconciliations  Group Total
HKS 000 Thn B5%H HAEH BERE HERE  EANEER aif HERE  AREAT
Segment assets APEE 14,858 29,023 - 3762 55,506 103,239 - 103,239
Reconcied items: HHER -
Cash and cash equivalents RebRESERR - - - - - - 29,49 29,49
Unallocated assets ROWBE - - - - - - 10411 10411
Total assefs HESE 14,858 29,023 - 3762 55,506 103,239 39,660 142,899
Seqment liabiites AH8F 385 84 - 9 3882 4,360 - 4,360
Convertbe bonds THRES - 87,803 - - - 47,803 - 47,803
Promissory notes EAER - - - - 4291 4291 - 4291
Reconclled items: UEER:
Unallocated liablies KALAE - - - - - - 2983 2983
Total liabiities BREE 385 87,887 - 9 48173 136,454 2,083 139437
As at 31 December 2013 RZBE—=F+=-A=1+—H
Money ~ Information
Trading Forestry Plantation lending  Technology
business business business business business Total  Reconciliations ~ Group Total
HK§ 000 AT 855k R EERR HEEE  EARERE Eh HERE  TRESH
Segment assets APEE 4458 199,811 64 - 1337 211,670 1,245 22915
Reconcied items: HHER -
Cash and cash equivalents RebRESERR - - - - = = 7098 7098
Unallocated assets AONEE - - - - - - 26,747 26,747
Total assefs HESE 4458 199,811 64 - 1337 211,670 35,090 246,760
Seqment liablites AH8% = 21 = = 1544 1M 634 2405
Convertle bonds THRES - 187471 - - - 187471 - 187471
Reconcled items: HEEE:
Unallocated iablfies FRAR - - - - - - {14 1

Total liabities BELE = 187,69 = - 1544 189,242 805 190,047




MERDEKA MOBILE GROUP LIMITED EZBBEEERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements

MR EME
31 December 2014
—F-WmFE+=-A=1T—H

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

5.

D EBERE (48)
Bl o BER
@@ EIEEFHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLFE

2014 2013

—EB-MF —F=fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT

Hong Kong BB 69,877 40,762

The revenue information is based on the location of the
customers.

(b) Non-current assets

BRI ATIAR PRI BRI

(b) FRBEE

As at 31 December

At+=A=+—H
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT BT
Indonesia EfE 29,000 199,811
Hong Kong BE 43,789 7,586
72,789 207,397

The non-current asset information above is based on the
location of assets.

LASERBEETIABERMEM AR
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5.

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from customers contributing 10% or more of the total sales

of the Group are as follows:

Customer A — revenue from trading business
— Hong Kong

Customer B — revenue from trading business
— Hong Kong

Customer C — revenue from trading business
— Hong Kong

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

EFA-RBEZEBZBA

—-&8

EFB-RBEZEHIBA

&k

EFC-RBESEBKZEA

&R

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts, the value of services rendered and interest income from loan
financing during the year. An analysis of revenue and other income is

as follows:

Revenue:

Revenue from trading business

Revenue from information technology business
Revenue from money lending business

Other income, other gains and losses

Interest income on bank deposit

Gain on early redemption of convertible bonds

Gain on fair value upon extension of
convertible bonds

Loss on early redemption of promissory notes

Loss on written off of other financial asset

Sundry income

WA
BHEBZIRA
AREHEEE 2 /A
RIEZER 2 /A

HABA
RITIFRZFBIA
R EE AR ES 2 Wk
ERAERERRZ

RN EWRES
RPBOARRR 2 ER
MERE SR EE < BR
FERMA

REHAEBHEEEEEM0%INA EEF 2
WAL :

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-—A=+—HLEFE

2014 2013

—EB-IF —T=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

Tz FHEL

19,800 15253

14,128 6,902

- 5,368

33,928 27,523
LONSES L ON

WATRRIASEZ 258 - HFNHEEE M
(IR EBERE SR 2 ERHE - T
RIS < BEMEFEE ZFSWBA < A
NEMBAZ DT

2014 2013
—F-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
53,200 38,038
16,281 2,724
396 -
69,877 40,762
175 1

2,752 2,237
39,480 -
(388) -
(1,748) -

34 78

40,305 2,316
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7.  FINANCE COSTS A 1%

2014 2013
—EB-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Interest charge on convertible bonds (note 1)  AJ#AR& &% 2 M S5 (FiH3E1) 12,820 22,200
Interest charge on promissory notes (note 2) 73 Z 4 » FI 5537 (Ff5E2) 2,227 =
Interest charge on bank borrowings RITIERR S 39 79

Interest charge on finance lease obligation BEMESRE 2 F SR
(note 3) (PE3) 25 =
15,111 22,279

Note: FsE

(1) The charge represents the imputed interest on the liability component of 1) RS IEANEE N BRIRESBELRS ZHEF B
the convertible bonds for the year

(2) The charge represents the imputed interest and coupon interest 2% per  (2) AP AR E AN ZE 2 (B B R EF2%EH

annum on promissory note for the year =
(3) Interest on financing the acquisition of motor vehicles 3) IWEE B R E 2 RIS
8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. RRBiAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging: REBERGEATETRHIBR 5B B 123 -
2014 2013
—ZT—mF —T-=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ BIXA(BEESZNE)
emoluments):
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMER 7,002 6,920
Termination expenses RIS 2 A - 303
Equity-settled share-option expenses  JARX#E 4582 08 SC B ARAE R 2 - 3,275
Pension scheme contributions RIRS BT 199 115
7,201 10,613
(b) Other items: HMIEE -
Auditors’ remuneration %R S
— Audit services — 2R 628 593
Depreciation e 1,241 5,098
Operating lease payments WA 2 EEHENK
in respect of office premises 1,475 586
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BERRE 2 EE
plant and equipment 15 87
Impairment of inventories FERE 390 -

Foreign exchange loss, net INEEIBRIFE - 78
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of directors during the year were as follow:

Executive directors:
Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions
Equity-settled share option expenses

Non-executive directors:
Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions
Equity-settled share option expenses

Independent non-executive directors:
Fees
Other emoluments:
Equity-settled share option expenses

9. EEMS
FREEBIEIOT :
2014 2013
—E—-mF —ET—=f
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
PITES
e - _
B -
e BEEL - HiEah R 2,100 3,246
B
RN RN 17 18
VARR AL & BB o iE AR S - 521
2,117 3,785
IENITES -
e 120 120
Hb e
e BEEEL - AR - -
EYFES
RIRSFT IR - =
VARRAE AL & BB e BB R S - 17
120 137
BNIETES ¢
e 360 340
He -
VARRAEE AL & RO B BB S - 20
360 360
2,597 4,282

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no share options were
granted.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, certain directors were
granted share options in respect of their services to the Group under
the Company’s share option scheme. The share options have been
vested upon the date of grant. The fair value of such share options
which has been recognised in profit or loss, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
period is included in the above disclosure for directors’ emoluments.

B F I+ A=+ — B - &
DR SRR

BHEZZ—=F1+-A=+—BIFE &F
EFREAQRBRCERE SRS
Bt 2 BRISIER B STIBROE - BEBRED
REHERRE - 25BEBREATEED
FEIRERIER - TIAREE BEE © Mat AR
HARIB s < SURAC AT A LIl e 2 E
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

EEME @
(a BIkFTES

FRECNELIFTES ZHEENT

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expenses emoluments
DRELEEN
Hne EEEREEX [k
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FHET
2014: —E-NEF:
Ng Kay Kwok (note 1) SREB K1) 120 - 120
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRI 120 - 120
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (note 1) EHIT(ME) 120 - 120
360 - 360
2013: —E-=4
Lam Kin Kau, Mark (note 2) MR (FE2) 60 = 60
Lau Ho Wai, Lucas (note 3) 2R (MEE3) 56 - 56
Ng Kay Kwok(note 1) SR (K1) 52 = 52
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann [P EYG 120 20 140
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (note 1) EEIT(ME) 52 = 52
340 20 360
Note 1: Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth were Misr . REBEERES IEER-Z
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the —=FtAZ+ R BEZEAX
Company on 26 July 2013. NABFIFPITES
Note 2: Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark resigned as an independent non- MizF2 : MEBREER-_Z—=FxA8
executive director of the Company on 28 June 2013. ZHN\RRHEARBES °
Note 3: Mr. Lau Ho Wai, Lucas resigned as an independent non- aE3: Bl AXER—_T—=F <A

executive director of the Company on 19 June 2013.

THhEBHEARRES -
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. EEME @
(b) Non-executive directors (b) FHITES
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other
allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fees inkind contributions expenses emoluments
A
FEE#E CARIEAEE

Hiti2 R BihE  HWELER
ik BRI IR R Beem
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TAT TAT

2014: —E-mE:
Wong Chi Man EE 120 - - - 120
2013; —T—=

Wong Chi Man BEX 120 - - 17 137
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9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

2014: B
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre ol

2013; —T=F:
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 2B
Ma Hang Kon, Louis (note 1) EHECEC D)

9.

Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits
in kind
e
EERE -
Hi2E R
BYFIE
HK$000
FAT

1,400

700

2,100

1,200
39
1,650

3,246

EEME w0
Pension  Equity-settled
scheme  share option Total
contributions expenses  emoluments
DR
BikE HEEER
EE 5 R MessE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
- - 1,400
17 - 77
17 - 2117
47 1,247
474 877
1 - 1,661
18 521 3,785

Note 1: Mr. Ma Hang Kon, Louis resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 16 October 2013.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Mzl : BEBEER-_ZT—=F1A
TARABERRRIES -

REE—E-NER—T—=F+-"A=+—
AIEFE @ WEER BRI ESHESRRE
WETENE 2 ZHE -

WEE-—E—MER-—T—=F+=-A=+—
AIEFE - NEEREREENE - UAE
BIREEIMASRINARERERS S M fEAE
BEIEAH(E -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included 2 (2013: 3)
directors. Details of the emoluments of the remaining 3 (2013: 2) non-
director, highest paid employee for the year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions
Equity-settled share option expenses

RARSFTEIHR

¥ R LB

The remuneration of each of the highest paid employee who is not a
director of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 fell within the range from nil to HK$1,000,000.

10.

VAR A5 B B ST R AR I

LERSEFMES

RER AEE=SFMEEEERE(ZE
—=F I ZR)EF-HE_THFT-A
=t BUEFE EHBR=2(CT—=F M
R)EESFHOGFERRE ZMESFENT

2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FBT FHT
1,660 1,330

44 30

1,704 1,360

BT NWEN—T—=F+"A=1+—H
LIHFE - EARREE NSRS HINES
£ B ZENFZ21,000,000/8 7T °

11. INCOME TAX 1. FrEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of WHESE S 2 BB RIS R IRA T R A H
the estimated assessable profits for both years. Taxes on profits 16.5%(—ZT—=4F : 16.5)51H - EtafExtrE
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the prevailing rates of A 2 BB ENRITAR - Bl R ER
tax based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices. RRITRIRETE -
2014 2013
—Z-F —B-—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Provision for the year FEEHE 640 -
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax FEMIEZ H A EAR T REMBATERE
using the statutory tax rate for the respective tax jurisdictions in which BT AL A B BRI AE B R M e BBR AT
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled is: EAERRIAT -
2014 2013
—=2-F —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHET
Loss before tax BRI RIE R (180,099) (115,153)
Tax at the applicable tax rate RERABETENTIE (29,703) (20,621)
Income not subject to tax BRA (18,797) (5,290)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose NERMFIFHS 47,01 19,520
Tax losses not recognised REER TS EE 2,096 6,391
Tax under provided HIBRETE 3 -
Tax charge at the Group ' s effective rate BASENERREAE 2 RIER T 640 -
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12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of approximately
HK$242,948,000 (2013: HK$87,476,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

13. DIVIDEND 13.
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year
(2013: Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable
to owners of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on:

Loss &8

Loss attributable to owners of the Company usedin ~ F{Est EEMEARER 2 A AR
the basic loss per share calculation AiEEa AFE(LE1E

Shares [iian)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FREBETE BRI T2

in issue during the year

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the convertible bonds and share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

RATREREE ABLEE

HE-Z-MFE+-_B=1t—HIFE &
AN A NG 2 A B EEEARAR
BIISERE ME IR ) E51847242,948,00078 70 (=
T—=4F : 87,476,000/67T) °

o=\

WAEE - AARRE SRR S (=T
=)

BREE

BEEANEBRIRIBARRIERES AEIGE
BRNFADR B TE R IR TFIORETE -

BEEARREEEE T EIIRE

2014 2013
—F-mE —FB-=F
HK$000 HK$'000
T THET
(172,225) (109,167)

Number of shares (thousands)

ROEEE (FR)
(Represented)
(E31)
368,324 206,349

HE—_Z-NFE-—ZT—=F+-A=1+—H
LIHFE - AR AR TR AR ES R B
R SR EA SR A R e - St I
HREFE 2 SREANBESAIEHAHES
RIFHEE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE
Computer
Construction Road and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
in progress bridges  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
ERR BENE HER EHlR
ERIE R £ BE  HOTRE AE it
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§1000 HK§1000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TER TR FEn TER TR TER TER
Cost: 7
At1 January 2013 RZZ-=F-F-H 5,000 1,257 151 39,933 521 455 4317
Addition EE - - 44 - 693 - 1437
Disposal and writien off i R (5,000) (1,257) (151) (39,933) (434) (179) (46,954)
At 31 December 2013 and at RZF-ZF
1 January 2014 TZR=+-BR
“2-mE-A-H - - T44 - 780 216 1,800
Addion BE - - 3% - 519 421 475
Disposal and written off e - - - - (17) - (1)
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-WE
tZA=t-H - - 79 - 1,282 4491 6,558
Accumulated depreciation and ZAERAE
impairment;
At1 January 2013 R-F-=F-F-H - 977 mn 32,486 394 m 34211
Provided for the year ERER - 85 21 4,505 131 5 5008
Written back on disposal HERER - (1,062) (105) (37,081) (334) (172) (38,754)
Impairment e - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2013 and at RZE-=
1 January 2014 T-A=t-BRk
ZE-PE-f-A - - 203 - 191 161 555
Provided for the year FERE - - 414 - 571 256 1,241
Written back on disposal I ERRMD - - - - 2 - 2
At31 December 2014 R-8-RE+ZA=1-A - - 617 - 760 47 1,794
Net carrying value: BEE
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-BE+=A=1-H - - 162 - 522 4,080 4,764
At 31 December 2013 RZ3-=4+ZR=1-H - - 541 - 589 15 1,245

The net book value of the Group’s motor vehicle includes an amount of
HK$4,020,000 (2013: HK$NIl) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

AEEAEZ FRFECEREMERERENEE
4,020,00087C(ZZE—=F : T8 °
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16.

FOREST CONCESSIONS

Cost: RS
At 1 January and 31 December
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January and at 31 December

Accumulated impairment: RaHEE

At 1 January m—H—HB
Impairment for the year FRRE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H
Carrying amount: SRMEE !

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

Amortisation is charged on a unit of production basis over the estimated
useful lives of forest concessions.

The Group acquired certain forest concessions in the Papua Province
of Indonesia through acquisitions of subsidiaries. The forest concession
rights cover the entire forest area of 313,500 hectares. This is a long
term licence which allows logging, land clearing and plantation of oil
palm trees.

In March 2015, the Company obtained an updated legal opinion and
legal confirmation letter from Adi Prasetyo & Partners Law Firm, which
confirmed that the location permit has been legally granted by the
Head of Mimika Regency to the Company for allocation of forest areas
in aggregate of 313,500 hectares, located in the Mimika Areas. The
plantation business licence has been legally granted to the Company
by the Governor of Papua, Indonesia. As such, the Company is legally
permitted to carry out land clearing activities and to develop oil palm
plantation business, including but not limited to carrying out felling,
logging and harvesting of trees, and plantation activities within the
Mimika Concessions Areas.

The Company commenced the process to apply to the National Land
Agency for land use right to establish the right to use of land area for
oil palm plantation activities according to plantation business licence
or Governor Decree 35/2009. The legal opinion mentioned that as
the Company has obtained all the licences and permits to carry out
logging, harvesting and plantation activities, the application for land
use right registration is merely a procedural matter. The land use
right registration is relevant only to the plantation activities and is not
required for the logging and forest clearing operations. It is expected
that there will not be any legal impediment.

W—RA—BRt+t-A=+—H

W—RA—BR+-A=+—H

ARMIFETAE

2014 2013
—F-mF —T—=%
HK$000 HK$000
FaT FAT
833,801 833,801
(3,990) (3,990)
(630,000) (560,000)
(170,811) (70,000)
(800,811) (630,000)
29,000 199,811

R DA EE B BRI AR AT 2 (R T AT
{0 FREFRAHIRR -

AREEF BRI B A FIBUSAIRENEE AT
EETRAFREERE - NSRS R
B #& A313,500A 8 2 # ik o b A— T8 REHA
FEER + AR RFR © FREIARID SRABEA R

RZZE—RF=A - "AFIHYSAd Prasetyo
& Partners Law Firm& A A2 5 B NOARIE
RE  HERMimkalTHERE A ERARAF
BT D EALAMimika& FEFE 4 $£313,500 A8
IRz 1B AR - mEfeRmRaRES
ERTARNEEEESIER - Bt - AAFE
HEERMimikalR R [@ A A AT B
HER K AEREEEERS (BEETRIIK
% - OARRIREIRBIAR) - ARIEBER -

ARAERBEERELAATITRERES
200943555 2 R 1A 7 B £ B2 A 55 £ 30
RE - AR (A T TR B 1
M o FRBRLRRH - ERARFCEUSETR
K WEIRIEEEE 2 FrE R KA AR
I RESLZ PREBTEMD - %+
HofsE It 2 B R UERN AR - (A5
EIMERBHAREER - Bt - BHS S
BEERDEEREEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

R4 35 80 o5 P R

31 December 2014

16.

17.

FOREST CONCESSIONS (Continued)

In 2013 and 2014, as the result of the unexpected delay of production
due to communal conflicts and caused riots at the vicinity, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of those concessions
and related equipment. These assets are used in the Group’s
forestry business reportable segments. The recoverable amount of
the relevant assets has been determined on the basis of their value-
in-use. In addition, the Group engaged Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group, to value the fair value of the forest concessions. The fair value
of the forest concessions as at 31 December 2014 was approximately
HK$29,000,000 (2013: HK$205,000,000) based on the income based
approach. The discount rate adopted was 21.06% as at 31 December
2014 (2013: 20.42%).

The review led to recognition of an impairment loss on forest
concessions approximately HK$170,811,000 which has been
recognised in the profit or loss (2013: HK$70,000,000).

GOODWILL
At 1 January R—H—HB
Impairment RE

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37)

At 31 December Hn+=B=+—8H
Goodwill acquired through business combination has been allocated to
the information technology segment.

The Group performed its annual impairment test for goodwill allocated
to the information technology segment cash-generating-unit by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying amount as at the
end of the reporting period. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating-unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations used cash flow projections based on a five-year
financial budget approved by management. Cash flows beyond a five-
year period approved by management have been extrapolated with an
estimated general annual growth of not more than 3% for a five-year
period. The discount rate used of 8.3% (2013: 8.3%) reflects specific
risks related to the segment. The budgeted gross margin of 17% (2013:
17%) is determined by the management based on past performance
and its expectations for market development. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group’s goodwill was impaired by HK$16,519,000 (2013:
HK$Nil). The directors consider the major factor contributing to the
impairment of the goodwill relating to the information technology cash-
generating unit was that a decline in demand.

16.

17.

e — Rt A B (B 7137)

89

FRPRAFETRE ()

R-E—=FR_T—F  HRBEEERZ
IhZ EESERR - ANEBE ARSI
B2 AR EI £ 58 - R EEETARAER
ZMAREFSAIRE DB o ABRAEE 2 I EE
B E(FREELER] ° 1N AEEDREE
R EEN R 2 B A B E (AR
SR EAR QG E TS E 2 A FE
EETEHE c R=E—mE+=—A=1+—H
ERAER L 2 ZMEFE QAT EENA
29,000,000 7T.( =& —=4F : 205,000,000
L) e RZFE—WF+=—A=+—8 ' FriRA
ZAREA21.06%( —E—=4 : 2042%) °

BRERAERRNETEREEBEY
170,811,000/ 7T + EERERERA(ZE—=
£ : 70,000,000/ 7T) °

[E5ES
2014 2013
—=-mE —®-=%
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
6,341 -
(16,519) -
44,178 6,341
34,000 6,341

FEERGEHEBZBEC D EEENRED

2o

AEEL RO FEMBHE D SRS EA BN
2 BRI A SRR E RS EIR 2 BREE

HEBETFERER - BEEL BN
I Bl &R TIRIRFEREEAE S AETE - %5
SHERAERREE R ENAFIETEE
IR RETRN o KLEIEEHERFH LA
IR &M T AR — R EF I R R THBiE3%H
FFHRHEE - FERANB3%(Z T —=F :

8.3%) AR R Lz H SRR ERR

FEENT%(—FT—=45 : 17%) EMNKHEIEE
RIRBERIR R EHTISERNTEEET - 1
REERR - AN B PEURIE 16,519,00078 T
(ZZ—=F T8 - BEFRE  EREH
BAEHIR S EA BN 2 HERENTERE
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18.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

The fair value of other financial assets represents profit guarantee
arising from acquisition of Ever Hero Group Limited (“Ever Hero”),
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the (“Ever Hero Group”)
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

At 1 January 2014
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note i)
Loss arising from change in fair value

At 31 December 2014 (note ii)

Note:

(0

(ii)

18. Hfhtm&EE

R=F—ME—A—H
WA LTI
AR B

R=-Z—E+= A=—+—8 (i)

Profit guarantee

HK$°000
FHET

6,773
(1,748)

5,025

E b & & 1~ F {48 YW Ever Hero Group
Limited ([ Ever Hero | * BRIEKIE A A © £
% [Ever Herok B N EZ==—NF+— A

=t A EFRAGEFIRE

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, the profit guarantee for i)
Ever Hero Group’s total net profit before tax and before extraordinary
items for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 shall not be
less than HK$5,000,000 and HK$8,000,000 respectively. In the event
of guaranteed profit cannot be met, the shortfall amount will set off
against the principal amount of promissory note. The fair value of profit
guarantee of Ever Hero Group was approximately HK$6,773,000 at
date of acquisition based on valuation performed by Castores Magi
Asia Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, by using a

binomial model.

The fair value of profit guarantee of Ever Hero Group was approximately (i)
HK$5,025,000 which is approximate to the shortfall amount for the year

ended 31 December 2014.

RIELHEREEZ  Ever Hero£ @2
HBARBABE_T—=ZER_T—F
+ZA=1t—RALFERFERFKRERA
S Al RIS 1#45,000,0007% 7T 52 8,000,000
BIT o WIRE S A TEEEER - ZEEE
SHAREE 2 ASEE - RWEERH - Ever
Hero&k El& FI(R 3 2 A F{E4756,773,000
FEIT o FIUEFRE 2 AFETERIBL
BELERMEMEZERNERARIE=
BRARAGET T2 (f(E -

Ever Hero sk B R FE R M 2 A FEN A
5,025,000/ 7T, + HEZE T —UFE+—A
=t+—BIEFEZEREET -
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

An analysis of interests in subsidiaries is as follows:

FE LML - BRA
FEMSFHTE 1~ RI5RIR

Unlisted shares, at cost
Due from subsidiaries

B OR(EEE

Less: Impairment losses

Due to subsidiaries FERNEBARRUA
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
are not expected to be recovered within one year. In the opinion of
the Company’s directors, these advances are considered as quasi-
equity loans to the subsidiaries. The amounts due to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Several subsidiaries had recurring operating losses with low liquidity
ratio. After reviewing the financial performance and financial position of
these subsidiaries, the directors consider that appropriate impairment
loss on the amount due from these subsidiaries should be written down
to their recoverable amount. As a result of the review, impairment loss
of approximately HK$257,040,000 has been charged to the profit or
loss of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$62,203,000). The recoverable amount of the asset is its fair value
less costs to sell.

ANNUAL REPORT £ | 91

19. KB TER
RUTB AR Z AT

Company
ANF]
2014 2013
—B—mE —E-—=fF
HK$000 HK$'000
FEBx T
938,602 938,602
181,659 113,008
1,120,261 1,051,610
(977,648) (720,608)
142,613 331,002
Company
AT
2014 2013
—E—mF —B-=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
25,108 24,754

R ARFIAAEER - 25 ARHETE
R—FRKE - RAREERS - FHBTH
BAETHB AR BLBEER - AHE
RESBEER - R REEEER -

SEMB AT AR S L ERBEREESH
KEAK - RERZEHBRARNTSRIE R
BRRE - EERBRIGZENBATIZIEZ
EEREBEEMAEERRD S5 - (EAE
RIMAER - (B E51849257,040,00078 TTET A
AREEHE—T—NF+_—_A=+—HLFE
2B KR(ZE—=1F : 62,203,000/87T) - &
EZAIRE& 38 AR AT EEREEMA -
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
establishment/
incorporation and

Name operations
R/ BT
£ REEHE
Merdeka Resources International Limited Hong Kong
BRERARERAT BB
Source Easy Limited Hong Kong
RHBRBRAT 0
Quasicom Systems Limited Hong Kong
BB
Netgenii Technology Limited Hong Kong
BERBERRA B
PT. Merdeka Tapare Timber Indonesia
e
PT. Merdeka Plantation Indonesia Indonesia
e
End User Investments Limited BVI
EBRAES
Mega Wealth Investments Limited Hong Kong
FEREERLA BB
Prestige Gold Limited Hong Kong
THERBRAT BB
M Technology Limited Hong Kong
BB
Merdeka Finance Limited Hong Kong
BReRARRA BB

19.

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRAEZER/
SRR AEE

HK$100,000
Ordinary
100,000/ 70 % ik
HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,0007 7T & Ak
HK$5,001
Ordinary
5,008 T EER
HK$1,000
Ordinary
1,000 T & Bk

US$500,000
500,000%7T

US$5,000,000
5,000,000% 7

HK$2,970,618
2,970,618/ T

HK$100 ordinary
10078 T & @ik

HK$1 ordinary
1BTERR

HK$1 ordinary
1ATERR
HK$1 ordinary

1BTEBR

RN E e )

BHREENMBARZFENT

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
FRREERE
Ezaot
Directly  Indirectly
E# EEE3

- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
= 95
- 95

- 65
- 65

= 95

100 -
100 =

- 100
- 100

- 100
- 100

Principal activities

TEER

Trading business
BHXK
Trading business
BHXK

Information technology
business

BRBHRER

Information technology
business

ERBRER

Forestry business

HARER

Plantation and forestry
business

BERMARS

Investment Holding

BAER

Investment Holding

RRER

Investment Holding

BAER

Information technology
business

BB R

Finance and money
lending business

RARRERS
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19.

Name

%

Instant Win Investment Limited
ARREERAR

End User Technology Limited

Gold Coin Development Limited
TRERERAA

Atbinary (Holdings) Limited
R (ER) AR

Merry Fortune Holdings Limited

Ever Hero Group Limited

Merdeka Timber Group Limited

Merdeka Resources Trading Limited

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation and
operations

R/ M
REE®Y

Hong Kong
Bk

BVI
RERTES

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
Bt

BVI
KBRS

BVI
RERTHS

BVI
KBRS

Hong Kong
BB

19.

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRTEER/
ERRAEE

HK$1 ordinary
1ATERR

US$100
1003

HK$1 ordinary
1ATERR

HK$1 ordinary
1ATEBR

US$1
1%

Us$1
1%

US$12,000
12,000%7T

HKD100 ordinary
1008 T LB

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Quasicom Systems Limited,
a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company is under liquidation process.

i) NG AE )

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company
ARREGERE

EEEDL

Directly  Indirectly

E# B

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

100 -

100 -

- 100

- 100

100 -

100 -

- 100

- 100

Principal activities

TEER

Investment Holding

RERR

Investment Holding

Investment Holding

RERR

Information technology
business

BRRHRER

Investment Holding

Investment Holding

REER

Investment Holding

Inactive

TR

EERRLERMESZARRIZHBAR - £
BRYEAFERENERASEEEFENE
Ripr - EERR - REEHMAHB AR ZFFE

HEEEERLENTTR

REE-ZT—MFE+-_A=+—HIFE &
AF|Z2EME A F)Quasicom Systems Limited

IDEIT/REIRR
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. RKIEA RS @)
The following table shows the information relating to the non-wholly TRIRE B EAIERERS ([ IR
owned subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). & ) 2R ENBATIRER - ISERIRE
The summarised financial information represents amounts before inter- 2 ARIEEIEATEEE
company eliminations.
2014 -
Netgenii
Technology
Limited
HK$'000
T
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—MFE+-—H=+—H
Non-current assets ERBEE 67
Current assets MEVEE 17,762
Non-current liabilities ERBARE =
Current liabilities mENRE (2,651)
Net asset BEFE 15,178
Carrying amount of NCI FEIEA R A 759
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—NF+_A=1T—HItFE
Revenue WA 11,082
Expenses sz (9,744)
Profit A 1,338
Profit attributable to NCI FEE AR R R A 67
Net cash flow from/(used in) LA EENE4/(FrA)IRE R EFHE
Operating activities KRR (489)
Investing activities B EED (67)
Financing activities REEES) 704

2013

At 31 December 2013, there is no wholly-owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests to the Group.

20. INVENTORIES

Finished goods

20.

UK

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year
was HK$50,722,000 (2013: HK$38,677,000), in respect of which
HK$390,000 (2013: HK$Nil) represents write down of inventories to net

realisable value.

—EB-=F

75(‘ T-=F+_A=1+—H  BEXENSB
REEEAEB BRI

7E
2014 2013
—2-mE —g-=%
HK$°000 HK$'000
it Tt
931 -

FARER BRI AT EK A 450,722,000
BIL(ZZ—=4 : 38,677,000/ 7T) © Erfh
390,000 T (=T —=4F : THT)IEFEM
BB BIR S EEFE o
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EBSEUERR
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables B D IEUERTK 7,132 2,300
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. ARERAES 7 BSIRATRMEERE -
The credit period is generally two months. Each customer has a EEH—RAMER - BEEFPESE=EER
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its B o AEBEBBIEHIRE S YR - Wk
outstanding receivables and has credit control procedures established B EERFUEREERR  SHRERAES
to monitor credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by TEHRFTREIR K - BZRBERFIIRRE. ©
senior management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting H Z BRSNS AR 2 BRile /AT (IR 1R %
period, based on the invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows: SHEHREBE T
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 3,207 299
31to 60 days 31£260H 2 -
61to 120 days 612120H 2,468 325
Over 120 days 1208 £ 1,455 1,676
7,132 2,300
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be KRR AEREC B SRR 2 BRE D HTA
impaired is as follows: TS 8
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Not impaired HRE 7,132 2,300
Receivables that were not impaired relate to customers for whom FORE 2 FEYBR BT BN MR R sk 2 B P
there were no recent history of default. The Group does not hold any B - AEBESBERZENEF AR

collateral over these balances.
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22,

LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group' s loan receivables arose from the money lending business during
the year.

Loan receivables bear interest at rates, and with credit periods, mutually agreed
between the contracting parties. Loan receivables are secured by personal
guarantees by the debtors/certain individuals. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly and handled closely by senior management.

The loan receivables at the end of the reporting period are analysed by the
remaining period to contractual maturity date as follows:

2. FEWRER
FNAEE Y RN E R B -

RN E T2 F|Z= RASE R TSR AT K 7T Rl
E o EREFUABEB A BEXEBAET
ERAL 2 EABRIEER - SREERASE
e AR E TR IR -

RIER - BRETIREREFABREALZ
HIRZ DM

Group

TEE
2014 2013
—Z-OmF —EB-=F

Repayable: B

Within 3 months =EAR

3 months to 1 year =EAzE—%
Over 1 year —FE

HK$°000
FERT

2,200
1,020

HK$'000
THTT

The aged analysis of the loan receivables that are not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

RaH M ARE
B —=={EH

Neither past due nor impaired
1 to 3 months past due

Loan receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to certain
debtors for whom there was no recent history of defaullt.

Loan receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to an independent
debtor. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary as the balance is considered fully recoverable.

3,220 —

W EAER A RBAR SRER I E R 2 fRie
DHTET -

Group

REE
2014 2013
LS —B-=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T

2,700 -
520 -

3,220 -

W s B slR < PN B R SR I SR AT
SR ETEBANER -

BEMEARRE R E SREB I EIEAER o
HRARREEHEMI R 28IRE - 3
RBRIELIBERE
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23.

24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FE{I8IE - & REMERIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
TEE ¥ /NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
=EB-nFE —T=F ZB-0OF _—"T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT FHET FET
Prepayments TEfFRE 6,098 6,084 6,079 =
Trade deposit BoLe 9,979 1,685 - -
Deposits and other receivables (note) &% R H b e U k18
(BREE) 16,547 21,399 2,002 6,077
32,624 29,168 8,081 6,077
Less: Impairment losses B R (EEE (6,004) = (6,000) =
26,620 29,168 2,081 6,077
Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to E bR ER S AR E 2 MR IR BT BRI A /X
receivables which had no recent history of default. FiacEE 2 FEUGRIB B -
Note: Bi%E
As at 31 December 2013, included in deposits and other receivables, a payment KR-ZE—=F+_-HA=+—H 20,000,000/ T2
of HK$20,000,000 represents a deposit for the proposed very substantial AR (Bat AiZe R EADFERGIE) 55 BEver Hero
acquisition of 100% interests in Ever Hero Group. The said acquisition has been Group 100% % 2 I ER EAWME 212 S o Lk
completed on 4 April 2014. BER =T —NFMAME T °
As at 31 December 2014, included in deposits and other receivables an amount R-ZE—NF+-_A=1+—H Bt AR REM
of approximately HK$10,530,000 due from a director of a subsidiary of Ever IR R 2 FEUREver Hero Group Limited Z — ST/
Hero Group Limited, which constitute a continuing connected transactions upon A BIEEFIELI10,530,00087T © R TeAUEEEver
completion of the acquisition of Ever Hero Group. The amount is unsecured, Herofk E {8 K —BIFERRIER S © %A RER
interest-free and repayable within one year. - RERER—FAEE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BERBEZEEER
Group Company
AEE ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —ZT—= —E-mFE =
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents Re RREHEIER 32,207 7,895 28,736 7,098

At 31 December 2014, bank balances carry interest at market rate of
0.01% (2013: 0.01%) per annum. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks of high credit ratings.

R-E—WE+-A=1+—0 - fITEIET
BEFZR001%(ZZ—=4F : 001%):t 5 °
RITHMBTIN A SRR RIS B 2R T -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Autorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
As at 1 January 2013

Share consolidation

Ordinary shares of HK$0.4 each
Share sub-division

As at 31 December 2013 and

1 January 2014
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Share consolidation

As at 31 December 2014, ordinary
shares of HK$0.08 each

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

As at 1 January 2013

Issue of shares upon exercise of
share option

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Share consolidation

Ordinary shares of HK$0.4 each
Issue of rights shares
Issue of consideration shares

Ordinary shares of HK$0.4 each
Capital reduction

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Issue of shares under general mandate

As at 31 December 2013

Issue of shares under specific mandate
Issue of shares under general mandate

Issue of rights shares

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Share consolidation

As at 31 December 2014, ordinary
shares of HK$0.08 each

25. JRA

Notes

Pt

EE
SIEEC.0E T2 EiEAR
F:"—:E— A—H

R&1nE B a

FREEC4ETTZ EEA
BAn DHF b(i)

R-E—=F+—-A=+—H0EF
—ZE—F—HF—H

FRYEEO.0E T Y LAk

&6 j

R_ZE—mE+—A=+—H "
lﬂx@{ﬁo 088 7T &AL

CRITRHRE :
FREEOE T LB
W—ZE—=%—F—H
1B R RRA RS B TR D

FAYEEO.0B T2 Tk
f&in& B a

FIEE04E T2 E iR
BATHAAD d
ITRERD e

FREEAB T EBL
R&ASEI bii)

GIRMEE0.01E T T
RIE— AR REEI TR f

R-F—=F+_A=1—H

R SIRIER T g
RIB—AIXHEEITIRD h
%é‘ﬁﬁi\ﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁ [

SRREEC.OE T 2 B
f&in& Bt j

WE-mEt— A=
SIRFE00BE T, Bk

Company
NG|
Number of
shares
BRHBE
’000
TR

20,000,000
(19,500,000)

500,000
19,500,000

20,000,000
(17,500,000)

2,500,000

8,578,649
588,500

9,167,149
(8,937,970)

229,179
91,671
20,000

340,850

340,850
45,000

385,850
150,000
77,000
2,451,401

3,064,251
(2,681,220)

383,031

Nominal
values
H{E
HK$’000
FERT

200,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

85,786
5,885

91,671

91,671
36,669
8,000

136,340
(132,931)

3,409
450

3,859
1,500
770
24,514

30,643

30,643



Notes to the Financial Statements

R4 35 80 o5 P R

31 December 2014

25.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

@)

(b)

©

(@)

©

On 20 February 2013, the Company proposed to effect the share
consolidation which became effective on 25 March 2013 being
approved by the shareholders that every forty existing shares of
HK$0.01 each in both the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.4
each (“Share Consolidation™).

On 11 July 2013, the Company proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation which became effective on 25 November 2013 being
approved by the shareholders ( “Capital Reorganisation” ). The Capital
Reorganisation involved the following:

(i) each authorised but unissued share of the Company was
sub-divided into forty shares so that the nominal value of each
unissued share was reduced from HK$0.4 to HK$0.01 each
(“Share Sub-division” ); and

(ii) the paid up capital of each issued share was reduced from
HK$0.4 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid up capital to the
extent of HK$0.39 so as to form a new share with nominal
value of HK$0.01 each ( “Capital Reduction™).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 588,500,000 shares
were issued upon exercise of share options. Total proceeds were
HK$5,885,000. The weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was HK$0.01 per share.

On 17 July 2013, the Company issued rights shares on the basis of
two right shares for every five existing share held on 21 June 2013, at
the subscription price of HK$0.4 per rights shares with nominal value
of HK$0.4 each, resulting in net proceeds of approximately HK$35
million, which would be used for general working capital, including but
not limited to development of the information technologies business and
the expansion of the Company " s existing trading business.

On 2 May 2013, End User Technology Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
the vendor for the purchase of 100% of the issued share capital of
Quasicom Systems Limited at a consideration of HK$8,000,000,
which should be satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 20,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company under the general mandate granted
at the annual general meeting of the Company on 3 May 2012. The
fair value of the issue price of the shares, HK$0.23 per share, was
determined with reference to the prevailing market price of the shares.
The shares were allotted and issued in July 2013.

25,
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PR A< ()

(@)

RZE—=F_A=+H ARQ7RE
HETRGOEH  BROAHR-Z
— = A tHAKEREIEE
o EEARNRRAF SO E
PREE0.01E T 2 IR B 31T MR
IR EHAE—REREE4AE T
AHBEG (RADEHE]) ©

R-ZE—=FtA+—H ARFZ
BETRASEE  RABENR-Z
—=F+ A ThBRBERIESE
M(TAEA ) - RABAEL KT
IR

@) ARAREREEBRETR
Do ENTIRAY  BUE
BRAREITRMWEERS
AR ZE0.01E T (TR D
) &

(ii) KRFFREETRGOE
AR H0475 TTHI B E0.01
VBIL AR Z0.3975
TTZBREA - BEHEKE
A EI{EO.0178 7T 2 Fh ([ P&
AHR)

B2 ZT—=F+_A=1+—HIHF
£ -+ 588,500,0000% % 17 8% S AE £ T
{FimEE1T  FT{SFEAR%E £5,885,000
VBT © 1T{E B ARAERS A I 1T AR (E
AFAZ0.01E T

RZZE—=FtA++tH KRR
TR - EEAR T —=F<
A-+—BEEERRERND - &
BRRREARALD - RIEEAERER
i (SR EE04ETT)04E T E
A P18 708 58 #4935,000,00055 7T,
BHFERRE—REEED B
BTRRAREEENRER - UKIE
BANGIREEDES -

R—_E—Z=ZFRAA_-H8 ' XA
A # 2 & K B 2 7] End User
TechnologyLimited B2 J5 7] 37 #37% -
LA 4 B8 Quasicom Systems Limited &
100% 2 21T A - K& /8,000,000
PBIT + AR ARIE—IRE(RARA
A—ZE— SR A=HHNRERAFK
& _ERH) Bl 3% 12 39720,000,000/% &
BRSA - RDBITEZATFEES
FRZ0.23%E T - IR EERIRDTE
EE - BROCR-B—=F+ ks
N34T o
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

®

((¢)]

(h)

i)

On 6 December 2013, the Company entered into a General Mandate
(“GM") placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, on a fully
underwritten basis, a total of 45,000,000 placing shares to not less
than six placees at a price of HK$0.156 per GM placing share. The
aggregate nominal value of the placing shares under the GM placing
agreement was approximately HK$450,000. The net proceeds from
GM Placing Shares would be used for expansions of the trading
business and the information technology business, including but not
limited to the exploration of the opportunities in investing in and/or
developing online games, mobile games and financial services related
software, as well as for strengthening the general working capital base
of the Company.

On 6 December 2013, the Company entered into a Specific Mandate
(“SM") placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a fully
underwritten basis, a total of 150,000,000 placing shares to not less
than six placees at a price of HK$0.156 per SM placing share. The
aggregate nominal value of the placing shares under the SM placing
agreement was approximately HK$1,500,000. The net proceeds
from SM Placing Shares would be used for expansions of the trading
business and the information technology business, as well as for
strengthening the general working capital base of the Company.

On 21 February 2014, the Company entered into a General Mandate
(“GM") placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a fully
underwritten basis, a total of 77,000,000 placing shares to not less
than six placees at a price of HK$0.171 per GM placing share. The
aggregate nominal value of the placing shares under the GM placing
agreement was approximately HK$770,000. The net proceeds from
GM Placing Shares would be used for strengthening the general
working capital to finance the business development and to finance any
future investment opportunities of the Company.

On 23 July 2014, the Company issued rights shares on the basis of
four rights shares for every one existing share held on 11 April 2014,
at the subscription price of HK$0.04 per rights share with nominal
value of HK$0.04 each, resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$93,560,000 million, which would be used for the partial redemption
of the convertible bonds and for strengthening the general working
capital base of the Company to finance its business development and
any future investment opportunities.

On 3 September 2014, the Company proposed a share consolidation
which became effective on 26 September 2014 being approved by
the shareholders that every eight existing shares of HK$0.01 each
in both the issued and unissued share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.08 each (“Share
Consolidation™).

25.
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26. RESERVES 26. f#iE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEERBESENAFTERBIFE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HBEBEE 2 NRETBHRERE
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the consolidated MR R

financial statements.

Equity
Share component Capital
premium  Contributed of convertible Share option  reduction Accumulated
account surplus honds reserve reserve losses Total
Rt TRRES kA&

BER  MABR CER¥Y BABRER  WERE  20EB &3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TEn TEL TiEn TEn Tin TEL TEn

At1January 2013 R=E-=%-A-H 703,864 18,203 28,733 974 - (670,107) 81,667
Change in equity for 2013; “E-CEEREY):
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEFELEEIE - - - - - (87,476) (87,476)
Expenses incurred in connected with B/ THERERELHER

Issue of rights shares (1,979) - - - - - (1,979)
Equity-settled share option IR Em R BRELE

arrangements - - - 3,322 - - 3322
Issue of new shares upon exercise of (TR ERERERIE ARG

share options 3,286 - - (3,266) - = =
Forfeiture of share options R ERERE - = = 47) = = @)
Issue of consideration shares BARERD (3400) - - - - - (3,400)
Partial redemption of convertible bonds BRI AT E% - - (3450) - - = (3,450)
Capital reduction of issed shares BETRIAZRAER - - - - 1329 - 13291
Issue of new shares upon placing RERSTRA 6,354 - = = = = 6,354
At 31 December 2013 and R=B-=F+-A=1-A

1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-F-H 708,125 18,203 25,283 963 132,931 (757,583) 121,922
Change in equity for 2014: “E-MEZEREY:
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEFELEEIE - - - - - (M2949)  (242,949)
Issue of rights shares BRI 69,208 - - - - - 69,208
Partial redemption of convertible bonds BI04 A R % - - (2,555) - - - (2,555)
Issue of new shares upon placing RERETRA 33,269 - - - - - 33,269

At 31 December 2014 RZE-MET-A=+-H 810,692 18,203 22,728 963 132,931 (1,000,532) (15,015)
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26. RESERVES (Continued)

(M

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Contributed surplus

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of a subsidiary
acquired in prior years, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Equity component of convertible bonds

The value of unexercised equity component of
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

Capital reduction reserve
Capital reduction reserve is the credit arising from the
capital reduction effective on 25 November 2013.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for the distribution to owners of the

EA16 )

U]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

R-EBE-—MER-_ZE—=%F+_A#

IR ME
REFEFHERADE @ WK
ZEEFNRBEERE
RNRFEEHEN A EEBE
BB HaER - RIS
BRAIDIKTARRR °

BAEER
RRBFABBRIEREF
U B o — I Pl B % B 0 B £
RNFEE - ERERHImE
TTNARRROEERNE
B

AR ES R
RRBBEITZABRBRERZ
RITEREED 2 BETIR
BEABABRES 2K
RTLARER -

BRBREME

ErBERERFERFBDRH
M EARITRE 2 BEBRE
RFEE - - ZBEERNER
BRBRETEREBRER
s ER - N BRREERE
P e PR Je o Sk 180R M B 88
BERBER -

BRAHR
BAHRHEER —F—=F
T—AZ TR R ERRAEH
IEERAR

B SR B
EXRBHERERRES
SNB AR BRRELEZ
PrAEE =% -

=t—B REFSHEQRNE 7

Company calculated in accordance with the Companies HYRANRREE A RERTES R
Law of the Cayman Islands was approximately HK$Nil and #EZ BT 83,472,000 7T °
HK$83,472,000 respectively.
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27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 August 2008, the Company issued the Convertible Bonds as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of forest concessions in Papua,
Indonesia.

Subject to the restrictions specified below, the Convertible Bonds are
convertible at the option of the bondholders into ordinary shares in the
Company at the initial conversion price of HK$0.1 per share (subject to
adjustment as provided in the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds) at any time from the date of issue and ending on the fifth
business day before the third anniversary of the date of issue:

. The bondholders do not have the right to convert any principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds into new shares of the
Company thereof, if upon such conversion, any bondholder and
the parties acting in concert with him will be interested in 30%
(or such amount as may from time to time be specified in the
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases as
being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) or more
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company at the date
of relevant conversion (the “Conversion Restriction”);

. The conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall not cause
the Company to be in breach of the minimum public float
requirement as stipulated under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing
Rules; and

. The bondholders do not have the right to convert any
Convertible Bonds with the principal amount falling between
the range of HK$350,000,000 to HK$776,880,000 at any time
during the period from the issue date up to and inclusive of the
date that falls on the first anniversary of the issue date.

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured, interest-free and have a
maturity date of 12 August 2011. Unless converted into the Shares by
the Company, the outstanding balance of the Convertible Bonds would
be redeemed in full on maturity.

By the first supplemental deed dated 30 May 2011 the maturity date of
the Convertible Bonds was extended for 3 years and the conversion
period will accordingly be extended from 12 August 2011 (date of
extension) to 12 August 2014 (new maturity date). Upon becoming
effective of the first supplemental deed, the Company may at any
time during the period commencing from the date of extension to the
new maturity date to redeem the whole or part of the outstanding
Convertible Bonds on a pro rata basis. Also, the Conversion Restriction
was removed. Apart from the extension of the maturity date and the
conversion period, the early redemption right and the removal of the
Conversion Restriction, all terms of the Convertible Bonds remain
unchanged.

27.
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27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

By the second supplemental deed dated 9 July 2014, the maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds was extended for 3 years and the conversion
period will accordingly be extended from 12 August 2014 to 12 August
2017. Upon becoming effective of the second supplemental deed, the
Company may at any time during the period commencing from the date
of extension to the new maturity date to redeem the whole or part of the
outstanding Convertible Bonds on a pro rata basis.

Upon effective of the second supplemental deed in 2014, the
Convertible Bonds was valued by the directors of the Company with
reference to a valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified valuer not connected to the Group. Gain on
extinguishment of convertible bonds of approximately HK$39,480,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company entered into
redemption agreements to redeem the convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$73,812,000 (2013: HK$27,000,000). The Company
recorded a gain on redemption of convertible bonds of approximately
HK$2,752,000 (2013: HK$2,237,000).

The Convertible Bonds contain two components, the liability and equity
components. The equity component is presented in equity as an “Equity

component of convertible bonds”.

The effective interest rate of the liability component is as follow:

Effective interest rate BREFR

The movement of the liability component of the convertible bonds for
the year was set out below:

REH)
FEEM

At beginning of the year

Interest charged

Extinguishment of financial liability charged
to profit or loss

Early redemption R Em
Atend of the year NG

27.

AR AREC ERAE

A RRE S (@)

HIVE—_OmAZE(ASMA—T—HE+E
ANR) R ES2 B A IERIF - MiRmE
ZABER R — T MEN AT —AERE—
T—F/\A+=H - REIRARZIBEER
f& - AR BIANER AR B R 2RI R B B
AR R PR B 2 B0k A ) R (EE 2 A]
B {ES o

M=ZE—NF 2 E_HEFTZEERE - AR
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PR EFEITIHE - wsE IRk ES 2 WS
4939,480,0008 TENEHZE=—Z—NF+=-A
=+ —HIFE RS BRERER

HE-ZT—=F+"A=1+—HItEE K
ANRIRIMERE % - ARE[EAN$%873,812,,000
BT (= F— =% : 27,000,000/ 7T ) Z A]
BHES o AQEISSHE B A B EEF RS L
2,752,000/ 70( —ZF—=4F :2,237,000/57T) °

ARG B A B RN MIEE ZANKED
7 o BB DA [P ESF 2 maln |2
5] -

BEBSONERNEMT -

First Second
Supplemental Supplemental
deed deed

F-RBRRE SFRERRE
14.13% 11.66%

FRRERES 2 BED 2 EBFFT

Group and Company
AEERADF
2014 2013
L —B-=%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
187,471 189,705
12,820 22,200
(39,480) -
(73,008) (24,434)
87,803 187,471
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28.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 4 April 2014, The Company issued a promissory note with principal
value of HK$51,000,000 (the “PN”) as a partial consideration for the
acquisition of Ever Hero Group. The PN bears interest at 2% per annum
and is due on the date falling on the last day of the 36th month from the
date of issue of the PN (the “PN” Maturity Date). The Company has the
right to redeem in full or in part of the principal amount of the PN prior
to the PN Maturity Date.

28.
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EARE

R-ZE—NFEMANR - KAREIBETAE A
51,000,000/ # 2 A 45 ([ A H R DIER
I B Ever Hero GroupZ S30R (B © EH &
FHER2%  HRAETRHEE=1/E
Az &% —B((AXEEIEIER)ZE - A8
BRERE N 2R EIE 2 B2 EPsk 30 i Bl
HER RS -

2014 2013

—E—mEF —E-=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

At 1 January R—H—HB - -
Issuance upon acquisition of Ever Hero Group HAPE AT B Uk EEEver Hero% &4

on 4 April 17 44,075 -

Interest charged FEFX 2,227 -

Redemption i={El (2,011) -

At 31 December W+=RA=+—H 44,291 =

The fair value of the PN is approximately HK$44,075,000 as at the
issue date, calculated at the effective interest rate of 7.04% per annum.
The promissory notes are classified as non-current liabilities and are
carried at amortised cost until settlement on due date.

On 1 September 2014, the Company early redeemed HK$2,400,000
out of the total outstanding principal amount of HK$51,000,000 of the
PN. As a result, the total principal amount of outstanding promissory
note is HK$48,600,000 as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the PN was
approximately HK$44,291,000.

The principal amount of the PN is subject to a downward adjustment
on the due day in the event that the target audited profit before
taxation and before extraordinary items of Netgenii Technology Limited
(the subsidiary of Ever Hero Group) for each of the years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2014 is not attained, on a dollar-to-
dollar basis.

EGEIENETRR A HEEAERNXE
F7.04%:TE + #9/744,075,0008 7T © HHE
BORRIERDAEIEERATR B
REHBES -

R-ZZE—WFENA—H KRR EKEE
1B AR(E I8 S EE44%851,000,0005 7T IR R iE
[512,400,000/8 7T FHR-_ZE—NF+=
A=+t BARZEEAEESHEAER
48,600,000 7T,

R-Z—FE+=-A=1+—8 ' &5 ZERE
{E4)/244,291,0007& 7T °

fiNetgenii Technology Limited (Ever Hero Group
ZHBRETRRIEBE_ZT—=F1+_4
=t+—AR=T—=F+"HA=+—HI-WA
FEHRIRIBRS S EATNED B IEEAR
BURAFHRIE B AEA - B ARSI
HAR /B[R FHA% -
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29.

30.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 29. FEHERE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
HERERE HEHRERERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-pmEF =% —Z2-mEF —T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amount payable eS8
Within one year —FR 623 - 519 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EZERF
(BIEEEME) 1977 - 1,831 =
Over five years hFEZ% - - _ _
2,600 - 2,350 -
Future finance charges RRHMEEA (250) - - -
Present value of lease obligations REAERE 2,350 -
Less: Amount due for settiement B TZEAREE
within 12 months [EBEEE 519 -
Amount due for settiement TZERZEEH
after 12 months [EEFLHE 1,831 -

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the
assets as disclosed in Note 15. (2013: Nil).

REE 2 AR EAEHMFISRERE
ERIER - (ZE—=F: T)

BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITERN
2014 2013
—=-NF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Secured bank borrowings repayable on demand RFEESK(EER 2 BIEMRITER 206 366
The secured bank borrowings were secured by a personal guarantee BERBRITERRAR ] — B AR ZES

given by a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

PRttt B ATERIERIER ©
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31. TRADE PAYABLES 3. ESZENKE
An aged analysis of trade payables as at the end of reporting period RIREHR - S ENFIERER B PriRER
based on the invoice date, are as follows: ST ¢
2014 2013
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT T
Within 30 days 30HA 597 277
311060 days 31260H - 43
61to 120 days 612120H 53 365
Over 120 days 120H A £ 1,543 232
2,193 917
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HtENFUEREAE
Group Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-nFE —T=F ZB-0OF —"T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
F#Ex T FEx T
Other payables H A fEARUR 1,295 126 - =
Accruals [EETRE 659 1,167 600 171
1,954 1,293 600 171
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of HEtEARIEARE  FHER A=A -
three months.
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EEBIE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of R-E—FE+—A=+—H  XEEXFHA
approximately HK$119,472,000 (2013: HK$111,027,000) available for TIEETTE A /511947200080 ( ZE— =4 :
offset against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. No 111,027,000/87T) + A FAEEER B SE A Ry
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due RAEF) o BREER AR RFIRIEDEET

to the unpredictability of future profit streams. REEN R T IE R R RERIRE A IR B 7
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group. The share option scheme of the Company
was effective on 3 May 2012, when the annual general meeting was
held. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the share option scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
The Board may, at their discretion, offer options to any full-time or
part-time employee or director of any member of the Group, and any
consultant of or adviser to any member of the Group (the “Participants”)
to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under all share option scheme must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under share
options which may be granted under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding share options) in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of the above limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval
with such Participant and his associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting.

If share options are granted to a connected person (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) or his associates, the granting of such share
options will be subject to approval of all INEDs (excluding INED
who is a grantee); where options are proposed to be granted to a
connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or an INED
of the Company or any of their respective associates which will result
in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted or to be granted (including share options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person under the share
option scheme in the past 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant: (1) exceeding 0.1% of the total issued Shares for the time
being; and (2) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, the
granting of such options will be subject to approval of the independent
shareholders of the Company. All connected persons will abstain
from voting (except any connected person that may vote against the
resolution).

34.

BB AER 8

AREHETRTBAETE] - §EREAKE
BEBHEER2EERHSBMET - AR
AEEBERE SN BRAFASRITERZ
TE-FRA=RER - BRIERTTRIHRE
&1 - B RMESTRERAERT BT s B R B R
SH0OFHREABNY - EFEAITAAEKE
RERRINEIMEZHRBEEXES - N
RALBEEARNE A RNERSEAA(2E
EFDRHEEBRE - UREARRRG (AR
1) e

B SERERTEIE TP R ERARTT
(R STRBAR R B TRRAB TR TZ R
BRZ NMSHRBNT Z 2B TRD30%

RIBA R RIS AR B SRR BRI ey
SERBRGEM Al TEITHRMDER - &S TG
BB T 10% - AEERE A B
REAMBRTEER T REE TEL2H
ENEEBERE(BRECITRERITERAESR
BEB)MOBTRETETORNER &
B MFHEEN R L ETEER D BT D
1% © (EfAIIR iR bl FREE H 8 ST BB A 44
AREISRIRILE  MABSEEREBEA
(E&ERAIFER LRI NMG2EERE -

MBI A L (E & RAIZER SRR sl B
BARTETHEE  BESEEEIENT
BR(TEENEEFEA 2B BN TEER)W
HOAE o MEBFEA T (IMAEAR AR EEARR K
BV IERITES) U EE B NBEABRHE
RIBEIENE - SEBURIKE R BN
HERT B HRI(BEZA ) 1218 A BEERET
FERTFHERTABALTHELERES
BT - BRI TER BT ERAE)
ME BTG FEITARMEE - NBEE
BB BTN 4E5801% : RQ)IBESIFER
HARE W ERTE - E 428 385,000,0007
JC » Bl i B ST B A A B AN A R
RERHLAE - FTE RS A T NVBIREIRE » T
S E R P RFHZRAIBTEA BRI
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Upon acceptance of the share option offers, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for each offer. The share option will
be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days (or such shorter period
as the Board may from time to time determine) from the date on which
the share option is granted. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors and commences after a certain
vesting period, if any, as determined by the directors and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the share option scheme, if earlier.

The subscription price of the share in respect of any particular share
option granted under the share option scheme shall be such price as
the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
shall be the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date of the grant of
the share option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the grant of the share option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the share option
scheme during the year:

34.

B R Bl im)

KRB TIBER - ARARRARRRIN
TETTEARHONRE - BEBRENEL R
HIEET28 H HIRS (B S TR E MBI H
) AT IR AR o R 2 BB 2 TT(ERIR
ETRE  URNETHESETE 2 FE A
(B &FE - ARENSHEBIR2EEHK
R HRERT T FRE BT BIEm 2 B
(ABRFERE)KLL -

TRIEE ST BB B3R H A e B R B AR
ERTH M DRRBERESS2ERT
FEEER T TIIERZ B A% : ()
REELERE B(WEASER BT
AERERFFIRDERTHE : (i)RERDEL
BENRE 2 B AT ALEE 3 R FTE B RBRFT
FIRKD BT + AR (ii)i% 1D 2 EfE ©

B ST R AR, T4 A AR S S R
RERRARER o

RER - BB BIR T 2 RITRERR
PerEsizan T

2013
—E-IF —T—=F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
AEF B% T &%
T8 BRESE 11618 EIEH A
HKS$ per share ’000 HKS$ per share '000
(Bk#ER) (k) (Bk#T) (Fhr)
At beginning of the year RER 0.834 1,698 0.017 83,500
Granted during the year RERFKL - - 0.01 595,000
Forfeited/expired during the year RERZI [Em - - 0.017 (4,000)
Exercised during the year RERTTE - - 0.01 (588,500)
Adjusted during the period upon effective  EIRF LA A G &%
of share consolidation and rights issue RS 2 R 3.36 (109) 0.51 (6,372)
Adjusted during the period upon effective BRI A B &
of share consolidation and rights issue HREMIR 2R 5.68 (1,333) 0.86 (77,930)
At end of the year iG-S 5.529 256 0.834 1,698
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding and exercisable as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2014
Number of options Exercise price*
“E-NEELBRERE TEEE*
’000 HKS$ per share
T BRET
19 3.36
237 5.68

2013
Number of options Exercise price*
“E-ZHELBRERE TEE"
’000 HKS$ per share
T BRET
128 0.51
1,570 0.86

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case
of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the Company’s share
capital.

The share options are vested at the date of grant. No share options
were granted during the year ended 31 December 2014. The fair value
of the share options granted during the year ended 31 December 2013
was approximately HK$3,322,000 of which the Group recognised a
share option expense of approximately HK$3,322,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

34. TWBRES@E

REERR - RITERAIITEREEBRE 2T
EEMITEHRRT

Exercise period

TREHE

30 May 2012 to 29 May 2022
—FEAAZFTRE=F-__FRA=-t+AHAH

17 January 2013 to 16 January 2023
—E—=F—-A++tREZE_=F—A+<H

Exercise period

1THEHAME

30 May 2012 to 29 May 2022
—HERA=tHE-_ZE-__FHA-TNH

17 January 2013 to 16 January 2023
—E—=F—A+tHZE =F—A+H

* BEBIE TR EAR MR RAT
FARFRAEMBE (FHFHE -

BEERENETERSRE - 2T —INF
T A=A IEFEWER B ERE -
HIF—ZT—=F1+-A=1t—RI-FEZHN
B RENRAE N T EEL A3,322,000/87T © #it
I AEERNEE—E—=F1+_-_A=1+—H
L\ FERER 2 B S IERR MR S £ /53,322,000
AT



ANNUAL REPOR 11

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 35 45 5 B

31 December 2014

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 was estimated as at the date of grant, using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Weighted average share price DETRRE
Dividend yield (%) KB (%)
Expected volatility (%) FEERRIE (%)
Historical volatility (%) [ SEOR R (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) R B (%)

Expected life of options (year)
Closing share price at grant date (HKS)

The expected life of the options is based on management expectation
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 256,488 (2013:
1,697,948 ) share options outstanding under the share option scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
256,488 (2013: 1,697,948) additional ordinary shares in the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$20,519 (2013:
HK$16,979) and share premium of approximately HK$1,391,355
(2013: HK$1,398,339) (before issue expenses).

34.

BERBRERO AR ()
R BB ZBRHEGET)

B R Bl im)

HE T =F+_A=1T—HIFENFR
BHRRAEEE L EREN AT EETIRE
HE BUAAL S — AT RATE B T EER
VEHERT » WACE BB ST IR H R O IR
RAGM o TREGIFTERAER N2

2013
=%
HK$'000
FiEn

0.01

74.19
74.19
0.39
5
0.01

BABRENGEFAFHNIREEEEENE
E - WTABARRAIRE IR T T(EAR 2 - TRHDR
TR R BRER SRR AT IR R ARRB RO » 1BR

STEQHEERIES RE RN ETREN
HAAFIE -

RIREER - ARBEEERERTS - ARFM
RITERE SN A256,48810 (= —=
F 1 1,697,948(7) o WRIEANA RIREFHIIRAL
B WRERARTENEEERERZATT
- BB R R REINETT256,4880% (= F
—=4F : 1,697,9480% ) LA - 3B HNKY
20,5198 T ( —ZZ—=4F : 16,9798 7T ) IR A K
$#11491,391,355/870( —Z—=14F : 1,398,339
BT R(E CRETIRD BETRIAD) ©
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35.

36.

37.

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. FWAEME
The Company has no significant contingent liability as at 31 December RAFRZE—NF+—A=+—BUEEKX
2014. HARLE
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. RKEHOEE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease NEBRIBKERNZHIREHEAE TN ST
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging 2o gmpEpE R 4O HE T — B RAE o
from one to two years.
At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease WoZ—pE+—B=+—0  ~NEEE 5
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as R TR AT A A B R SR R
follows: FEfTHBREE A
2014 2013
—F-mF =
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T
Within one year —FR 721 854
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEFRF(RREEEMT) 247 285
968 1,139
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EIFREE
The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at 31 AREBN —Z—NF+ = A=+—HIELM
December 2014 (2013: nil). BRENARE( T —=F  ]) o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EBEHEAERXES
Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial BN A BT REH b T FTiRFEE S + A%
statements, the Group have the following related party transactions. BELATEE RS ©
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group REFTEEIEE A S 7 Hi
2014 2013
—E—mEF —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Short term employee benefits s =V 2,580 3,706
Post-employment benefits EREER 17 18
Equity-settled share option expense VAR A B RO B ST B AR R S - 558
Total compensation paid to key management NTPEEERAB ZH B
personnel 2,597 4,282
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise convertible
bonds, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

Itis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy
that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing this risk and they are summarised below.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales, purchases or expenditure by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. The following
table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to
a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of the HK dollar
(“HK$”) and Rupiahs (“Rp”), with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

2014 —Z-MOmF

If HK$ weakens against Rp
If HK$ strengthens against Rp

2013 —E=EF

39.

BT A ENE R E
BT e ETHE

If HK$ weakens against Rp s H e Bz E

If HK$ strengthens against Rp

BT A ENEBTHE

B EEEE B ERBER

AEEz TR T ABREMMARES 1
EREHER - ZEFERMTATIREE/NE
B &EREES - AREHASEEL MM
BENAE  MERHESEELZEHEK
RN B BIENRTR o

NEEZ R AN LBEE2ETETINE
RTARZS -

AEBEGRTAREEY EERRAINEER
RABASER - EFRBHRAEEREE
B B - BRI -

AEEPRRXHEERR o ZFEEBRKE AL
BEUMNMEEB NG EEHNEE M
X o TREAAIET(ET ) REERE ([E
[EfE DIERMTIREEE) - FEEMBERIT TR
BT » HAKERFEAROGRTATER
(EREBEERABZ A FEEZE) MU
BOHT °

Increase/
(decrease) in

Increase/ loss before tax
(decrease) in and accumulated
exchange rate loss
FRBUATETIE

E-ayy i

ExLH (T 2, (Rd)
% HK$'000

% FHET
(10) (19)

10 19
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  39.

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of convertible bonds and

promissory notes.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial

liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2014

Bank borrowings
Trade payables
Finance lease obligation

Other payables and accruals

Convertible bonds
Promissory notes

2013

Bank borrowings
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Convertible bonds

SRITIE R

Z SRR
BMEMREAE
HibfEZUB R E A A
AR ES

EAER

RITREK

B HENFR
HENZUA KB A E
AR

%ﬁ'ﬁé@%ﬁﬁ%
{ o

BEME FIEER -
—=-nF

Group
FEE
More than 1 year

Within one year but less than

or on demand 5 years
ZR—F
—FRFRER BIREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
206 -
2,193 -
519 1,831
1,954 -
- 124,068
- 48,600
4,872 174,499
—T—=f
Group
e

More than 1 year

Within one year but less than

or on demand 5 years
ZH—F

—FRNFIREK (Ey Tk
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET

366 -

917 -

1,293 -

197,880 —
200,456 -

SRAE

M EEREERERBER(E)

B2 B VR B I FIR AR E SR SA

I PR M

IREIARIEA KFTR RO 2 A= B

Total

Fik ]
HK$’000
FHET

206
2,193
2,350
1,954

124,068
48,600

179,371

Total

#ER
HK$'000
TET

366

917
1,293
197,880

200,456
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiBEMEEEERBEE)

POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) SN B (4])

TERBARIES QSRR R 2 AR BE

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s

financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. BREZREER
2014 —s_m&
Company
PN

More than 1 year

Within one year but less than

or on demand 5 years Total

ZR—F
—FRFRER BLRESF B
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHERT FHET FHET
Due to subsidiaries ENHBARZIE 25,108 - 25,108
Other payables and accruals HihENIBRIETAE 600 - 600
Convertible bonds AR ES - 124,068 124,068
Promissory note HH - 48,600 48,600
25,708 172,668 198,376

2013 —E-=F
Company
RAT]

More than 1 year

Within one year but less than
or on demand 5 years Total

ZR—F
—FRHIREK BAIREE k]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
Due to subsidiaries FERHB A RRIE 24,754 = 24,754
Other payables and accruals Hi B R ERTaE 171 - 171
Convertible bonds AR E S 197,880 = 197,880
222,805 - 222,805
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

The Group does not have material exposure to interest rate risk, as the
Group has no financial assets and liabilities of material amounts with
floating interest rate.

Management will continue to review the market trend, as well as its
business operation needs and its financial position in order to identify
the most effective tools for the Group’s interest rate risk management.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade, loan and other
receivables. Management has monitored the exposures on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has concentrated credit risk by customer as of 15% (2013:
Nil) of trade receivables were due from the largest customer as at 31
December 2014.

The Group has concentrated credit risk by customers as for 40% (2013:
75%) of trade receivables were due from the five largest customers as
at 31 December 2014.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would exposure the
Group to the credit risk.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it,
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objective policies or processes for managing capital during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

39.

B EEEE R ERBER(E)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiEMEREBEREE@®)

POLICIES (Continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total AEEFAERBELRETER - ERAE
borrowings divided by total capital plus total borrowings. The Group’s I:I:I RIERARTERR AE N ABRB DB FRARRE o 2R
total borrowings represent bank borrowings convertible bonds EERAETERIRITER « AHRRES A,
and promissory notes. The Group’s capital represents the equity 7,4)““ REE 2 BAE A RIIEEE AL
attributable to equity holders of the parent. AR
Group
EH
2014 2013
—ZT—nmEF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHET
Bank borrowings RITIETR 206 366
Convertible bonds ATRES 87,803 187,471
Finance lease obligation BB E AR 2,350 =
Promissory notes S S 44,291 -
Total borrowings Rt 134,650 187,837
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNATIRNEEE AEEAR g R 12,934 58,363
Total capital and borrowings BARRAEREEEE 147,584 246,200
Gearing ratio ERABHE 91.24% 76.29%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AR B AR EL B B FSZHNEBHT AR
externally imposed capital requirements. FE o
40. BUSINESS COMBINATION 4. FXBEH
On 4 April 2014, the Company completed the acquisition of the entire RZF—UFMAME - AR EITEAUEEEver
equity interest of Ever Hero Group. Herof & 2 ZpiR AN iR
The consideration was satisfied by (i) HK$20,000,000 cash and BRARED RUETER B BALAZR £20,000,000
HK$51,000,000 promissory notes issued on the completion date of BIETERKBTRKBBRETIALER

acquisition. 51,000,000/ 7B
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40. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 40. EF—ENEBQTESE@®
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, the profit guarantee BIEHE REE R - Ever Hero @Zmﬂ
for Ever Hero Group’s net profit before tax and before extraordinary RERBE_T—=FR_T—MNF+_H
items for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 shall not be E"I——Elﬂzﬁfﬁf‘/%ﬁ&%’ﬂ'*lﬁﬁEﬁiﬁ?&jﬂiﬁ’rgﬁﬁ
less than HK$5,000,000 and HK$8,000,000 respectively. In the event A1~ 745,000,000/ 7T % 8,000,000 7T © fis]
of guaranteed profit cannot be met, the shortfall amount will set off (R m FI T REZED| ’E%ﬁﬂ%ﬁlﬁ%@%ﬁ%%
against the promissory note on a dollar for dollar basis with a cap of HOBAER - _ER713,000,00078 7T © R
HK$13,000,000. The fair value of the profit guarantees of Ever Hero Castors Magi Asia LimitediZz — B BAL T T
Group was HK$6,773,000 at the date of acquisition based on valuation & * Ever Hero%= 8] 7 i FIR B AUREE B H 2
performed by Castores Magi Asia Limited, by using a binomial model. NEEE6,773,00757T °
The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the MUK TR B HRFTUREE & B M TR B &I
completion date of acquisition were as follows: N
Amount
o]
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and Bank balances & MERTT4EER 10
Trade receivables FEWE S5RIE 3,600
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables TERFRIE - e RAEMERGIE 1,056
Amounts due from a shareholder FEUAR SR RIE 11,234
Trade payables B S ENRIR (1,000)
Other payables, accrual and deposits received HibEAFUE - [ERFAERERIZE (46)
Tax payable FERITRIE (1,037)
Net assets / (liabilities) acquired P EE (BE)F8E 13,817
Less: Non-controlling interest 5% of Netgenii 3+ Net ?enll Technology Limited,~
Technology Limited 5%IEIER R (692)
Net assets attributable to equity owners of Every Herofs Bl s g AFE(LEEF5E
Every Hero Group o \ 5 ; 13,125
Other financial asset — profit guarantee HiSrEE - UATFEERE2RMRE
at fair value 6,773
Goodwill EES 44178
Consideration for acquisition satisfied by: LALATR A R ERUEE R E
— Cash paid —EMRE 20,000
— Promissory note issued at fair value —RATEBEITZRLER 44,076
64,076
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BEWEE 2 RE MRS SEBER DT
in respect of the acquisition:
Cash consideration RERE 20,000
Deposit paid in cash during the year ended BE-_Z——FT-A=T—HItFE
31 December 2012 LIRS B iR (20,000)
Cash consideration paid during the year ended BE—T-MFE+_A=1+—HItFE
31 December 2014 ENRENE =
Cash and bank balances acquired BRGNS RIRT TR 10
Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents PEEZT—NF+-A=1—HIFEZ
during the year ended 31 December 2014 4 REAZEER Zﬁ%um)\@%ﬁ 10
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the period, HA BEAERFETT + BIEver Hero&=E 2 A
the revenue and the loss of the Ever Hero Group would have been REEED RN ATHETRERTT

approximately HK$Nil and approximately HKS$Nil, respectively.
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40. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 40.

On 18 July 2013, the Group obtained control of Quasicom Systems
Limited by acquiring its 100% equity interest at a consideration of
HK$8,000,000 which was satisfied by issue of 20,000,000 shares at
HK$0.4 per share by the Company to the vendor at the completion
date at the closing price HK$0.23 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange, approximated to HK$4,600,000.

The following summarised the recognised amount of identifiable assets

EXkettm

RZZE—=F+A+N\A  AEEEKE
Quasicom Systems Limited 2 100% 54 1S
H i - X (E8,000,000/8 TTEEA R ALK
1BRASERK B BB SR P ATl 2 Uk T B = A%0.23
5 TT A5 J7 %£7720,000,000 % %0478 7T 2
%15 (B1E494,600,00075 7T ) S £+

AT B A B B RARE EHR =T

acquired and liabilities assumed as at 18 July 2013: —=FEAT\BZERRSEHE
Amount
recognised
(fair value)
EERETE
(REEE)
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired of EWBEEFE
Property, plant and equipment S INE 10
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHERR 42
Account receivables FEMRBRTR 108
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables & FBNFUERE KA 237
Account payables FERTBRIR (1,078)
Bank borrowing SRITIERK (421)
Other payables, accrual and deposits received HAbERFIE - ERTRIERE SRS (639)
Net liabilities acquired e EFE (1,741)
Goodwill mE 6,341
Consideration R{E 4,600
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents in P EEEIE RE KR SFEEBR O
respect of the acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BREERE =
Cash and bank balances acquired BUEEIR & MIRTTHES (42)
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41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1)

2)

3)

On 22 January 2015, the Company announced that a writ of
summons was issued in the Court of First Instance of the High
Court of Hong Kong by Au Kai To Karel, as the plaintiff claiming
against (i) End User Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the 1st Defendant; (ii) the
Company, as the 2nd Defendant; and (iii) Lau Chi Yan Pierre,
the managing director and executive director of the Company,
as the 3rd Defendant for, inter alia, (1) specific performance of
an agreement dated 2 May 2013 in relation to a discloseable
transaction of the Company (details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 2 May 2013); or (2)
alternatively, the damages in the sum of HK$8,000,000 in lieu
of specific performance; and (3) the interest; (4) further and/or
other relief; and (5) the costs. The Company have instructed
legal representative to handle the matter, and was advised that
the claim does not have merits as the agreement had been
duly and completely performed. The Company is considering
applying for striking out the claim, subject to further legal
advice.

On 19 March 2015, the Company partially redeemed HK$10
million of the Promissory Note at a cash consideration of
HK$10 million paid to Hero Win Development Limited, the
holder of the Promissory Note (the “Redemption”). Accordingly,
at completion of the Redemption, HK$38.6 million of the
Promissory Note remain outstanding.

On 25 August 2014, the Company proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation which became effective on 6 January 2015
(“Capital Reorganisation”). The Capital Reorganisation involved
the following:

(i) each authorised but unissued share of the Company
was sub-divided into eighty shares so that the nominal
value of each unissued share was reduced from
HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 each (“Share Sub-division”); and

(ii) the paid up capital of each issued share was reduced
from HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 by cancelling the paid up
capital to the extent of HK$0.079 so as to form a new
share with nominal value of HK$0.001 each (“Capital
Reduction”).

41.

HEHREE

1)

R-ZE—HE—A=-+=H &2 7
B AREF(REDREESE
SEREAERER YA TE L EMS
N () 7N i =L ) = /N | =g e
User Technology Limited (5 —#45) :
() ZANCILE Tt == I 54 (1) Y VN o
BRECIEFRITESAR (B
5) 0 URHATIRE - ERaiEA)
BEBITHEA—SE—=FRA-H
BEAARFATHER S (BHEFER
BERARRIERA-TS—=FRA=
B2z @B R M -
8,000,000/ 8 LAY K& HIBITIES
FEFE  @#E—F R SH M
& REEA - AAFIEHENARR
KEEEE  WEENARREE
HERTREIT  AREVERE
AABIEEERFGGRE  BFFE
—HEEER -

R-ZE—RE=F+hIAB &L
A B mEH Z %A A Hero Win
Development Limited % - I8 & X
10,000,000 7 7T * EB o HE R A
10,000,000 % 7T K9 & 5, Z & ([ 28
B]) o Eiit - Re&ERTERE @ AE
38,600,000/8 TCHY L =IBTIARE M

R-ZZE—MENAZTREE  AAF
ERErTRAEMA(TIRAEAR]) - A
—E-RF—ANARAER - BRAE
AR

(i) HREEBREITAAFR
BoFAENTREY  BF
REARZET TR < E{EFR0.0878
TTERZE0.0017% T ([AX 15 5D
7)) &

(ii) D SRR AEAR0.079
B BREBRITRMHZE
SRR AR 0.0878 TR E
0.001/87T » EMEKERE
{E750.0017% 702 ¥ %0 ([ A%
AER]) ©
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42,

43.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued
but are not yet effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January

42.

C MBI R VBB RS 2R

ERMERRN R R AR B RS
FER T HIEBMERFMA 2 BARBNR_-F
—mE—A— AR VBEHRAR TR

2014:

Amendments to HKAS 19

BB GRTERIFE195R(ERTR)
HKFRS 9 (2014)

ARV REERER(ZZT—HF)
HKFRS 14

BB IRELERZE 1458

HKFRS 15

BB IR EYER| 1558
Amendments to HKAS 1
EAGTTERIFE1HRERTAR)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

R GHENF165E BB ERIEI8HE (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

ARG ENF165 LB A GTEAE415 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 27
ARG ERIE2THR(EETR)
Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10

BB G AERIF 285 R BB IR E LR
F105% (15T A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

BEPBWMEERE105 - BEMBRELRFE 1257

REEGHERE28H (T ——F)
Amendments to HKFRS 11
BRMBRELRE115%

Annual Improvements to (2010-2012)
FEUE(ZE—ZEE_F—-F)

Annual Improvements to (2011-2013)
FEUE(ZE——FEF—=%F)

Annual Improvement to (2012-2014)
FERHE(ZT——E=-_T—NF)

RIERTEBITEMERER - (B5T Rk -

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’

FEBAGE - BEHRK

Financial Instruments*

TRT A

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

EEIRIEARE?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?®

B P2 REE REERRAS

Disclosure Initiative

R

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation?

FEMBENAER AN EE?

Bearer Plants?

FEEEY?2

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?

FESB S B sk B R e A2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

REEEHBEYAERE L MNEEHESILE?

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

BE

:

E

g BRSAREGIIMER

\r

Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operations?

REtE K ENER KBS 7R

Amendments to HKFRS 8, HKAS 16, HKAS 24 and HKAS 38!

BB HREERIEST - HEGIERE165% - BB SR
245 N BB G HERIEI8R (BT A)!

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 13, and HKAS 40’

EBMGREEREI - HEUEHREELE135% L EE G LER
5405 (1ERTA)!

Amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 192

BB EERESS: - HEMBHREERETR R EE G ER
195 (1ERTA)2

1. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 1. R-Z—E+ A — AR LRI ZFE

2. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 2. ?’Cq@%i&ﬁﬁfﬁ —HBezERRZFE

3. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 3. ?E%%tﬁ—ﬂ —HEZBRBZ FE

4. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 4. %E%ﬁj\ﬁ—ﬂ —B 2 BRBZFE
FARJERL ©

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
So far the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations

and financial position.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board on 31 March 2015.

REBIEAZ SRR MR BB IS E
AR IAER AR 2 P BRI RS - BAT - A%
RS - xBHMa] RERT BB P R
IARATRESI AR B 2 (8 A R TSARIERK
BAYE -

FAEEER 2 i

AUBHRECREFEN _F—HF=A
=t ARERIRETE -
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MEBTHEER

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling AT AKREEBERESNKFE HENLEERE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from & « BEMIFHFERAERSE - Ttk E B TR AKE
the published audited financial statements, is set out below: TSRS

RESULTS E S

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
BE-T-TF BE-T——F BE-T—F BE-T-=F HE-E-NF
TZA=+—R +t=ZA=+-A +=A=t—-A +=A=t+—A +ZA=+-AH

FFE HFE H5E EFE tEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FHT FHT FHT AT THEx

Revenue WA 6,715 8,891 7,909 40,762 69,877
LOSS BEFORE TAX BHATER (67,454) (69,526) (644,073) (115,153) (180,099)
Income tax Frigat - - = = (640)
LOSS FOR THE YEARIPERIOD 4,/ BikEi 12 (67,454) (69,526) (644,073) (115,153) (180,739)

Attributable to: JE(G -

Owners of the Company AARREEEA (64,294) (67,157) (613,037) (109,167) (172,225)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (3,160) (2,369) (31,036) (5,986) (8,514)
LOSS FOR THE YEARPERIOD 47,/ S8/ iiE (67,454) (69,526) (644,073) (115,153) (180,739)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ¥E - BERFERER

As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RZZ—TF pPZT——F RIT—-F RIT—=F RIE-NOF
+-A=+—-8B +=ZB=+—-8 +=ZA=+—-8 +=-A=+—-8B +=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THL FHT FHT THT TET
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 951,791 921,601 314,400 246,760 142,899
TOTAL LIABILITIES maf (488,050) (305,635) (194,262) (190,047) (139,437)
463,741 615,966 120,138 56,713 3,462
EQUITY: i
Equity attributable to ARTIREEEA
owners of the Company e 426,000 580,594 115,802 58,363 12,934
Non-controlling interests IR 37,741 35,372 4,336 (1,650) (9,472)

463,741 615,966 120,138 56,713 3,462
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GENERAL TERMS  —f&:A%

AGM(s) Annual general meeting(s)

RERBERNE RFAFAE

Articles The Articles of Association of the Company

gl NATEBEIZMAA

Audit Committee The audit committee of the Company

EEEg RNRAREZZESR

Board The board of Directors

= i

CEO The chief executive officer of the Company

T RNABHTH AR,

Chairman The chairman of the Company

FE PN/NGTE S

Code The Corporate Governance Code under the GEM Listing Rules
SR BIEMR ERAI TR )RR

Company Merdeka Mobile Group Limited

Vi N/NE] Merdeka Mobile Group Limited (2= &£ B AR A F*)

Convertible Bonds

AR A

Director(s)

The convertible bonds issued by the Company on 12 August 2008 as part of
consideration to acquire the forestry business. The convertible bonds, originally due on
12 August 2011 and extended to 12 August 2014, are interest-free and convertible into
the Shares at the initial conversion price of HK$4.00 per Share (subject to adjustment
according to the terms of the convertible bonds)
HARARZZZNFENR+ZBEITERUBEMAE 2 A REZ ATHRRES © 7]
BREF(BRR_ZE——F N AT RIPVEE_T—NFNA+T=ZB)REE - WA
RSB F4.0078 705 LA (RAR AR A E 275 2 1R R AT T )

The director(s) of the Company

5% RABES
GEM The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
BIEMR B 22 PRI AR

GEM Listing Rules
BIZER EHAR A

Group
REE

HK or Hong Kong
e

HK$
BT

Y EGS)

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
BIZERE S EAR Al

The Company and its subsidiaries
KRR REMBAF

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of PRC
PEEBFTTRER

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BEEEES
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B RHE

INED(s)
BNIENITES

Ivana
lvana

N/A
NEH

Nomination Committee

REZB®

PRC
G

Remuneration Committee

¥MZES

RMB
PN

Rp
ENfEd

SFO
& 75 R )

Share(s)
e tn

Shareholder(s)
R

Stock Exchange
B 22 P

us
ESEY

uspb
ey

%
%

FINANCIAL TERMS

Current Ratio

MBI

Gearing Ratio

BRaFELE

B ASE

Independent non-executive director(s)

BUIFMITES

Ivana Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
Ivana Investments Limited + ZNA 7] 2 = ZALER

Not applicable
TEA

The nomination committee of the Company

ARBREERES

The People’s Republic of China
FREE A RAAE

The remuneration committee of the Company

AARHHNER S

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC
AR PBVEEE

Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia
HeE - HesEE

The Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIESTIE B H REIEEHI

The ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RABRAR GREEC.0NVE LA ERAR

Holder(s) of the Share(s)
ESUESZEPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBARXHMBERRIF]

The United States of America
EFIRE RE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of US
XL EBUEEEH

Per cent.
Bokt

Current assets divided by current liabilities

MBEERARB A E

Total borrowings (representing bank & other borrowings, convertible notes and finance
lease payable) divided by total capital employed (i.e. total Shareholders’ fund plus total
borrowings)

BEECGIHRTREMES - ARRREREEEE RN RIA) R AME A& E AR (AN
RERE S EEMNAEE)
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